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Item 1. Business

Certain statements in this Annual Report annt 10-K, including certain statements contained‘Business” and “Management’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition d@Results of Operations,” constitute “forward-lookistatements'within the meaning «
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as aneelnéind Section 21E of the Securities Exchangeofd934, as amended. The word:
phrases “can be,” “expects,” “may affect,” “may deg,” “believes,” “estimate,” “projectand similar words and phrases are intend¢
identify such forward-looking statements. Such farsMooking statements are subject to various known wmichown risks and uncertaint
and SIGA cautions you that any forwdmbking information provided by or on behalf of $4@s not a guarantee of future performa
SIGA’s actual results could differ materially frotinose anticipated by such forwdabking statements due to a number of factors, sof
which are beyond SIGA’ control, including, but not limited to, (i) thésk that potential products that appear promisiogStGA or it
collaborators cannot be shown to be efficaciousafe in subsequent paéinical or clinical trials, (ii) the risk that Si&or its collaborators wi
not obtain appropriate or necessary governmentaiozpls to market these or other potential prody@dtsthe risk that SIGA may not be al
to obtain anticipated funding for its developmentjgcts or other needed funding, (iv) the risk tB#EA may not be able to secure func
from anticipated government contracts and gramsthe risk that SIGA may not be able to securesforce sufficient legal rights in
products, including patent protection, for its prots, (vi) the risk that any challenge to our patand other property rights, if advers
determined, could affect our business and, eveetérmined favorably, could be costly, (vii) thekrthat regulatory requirements applicabl
SIGA’s products may result in the need for further daitémhal testing or documentation that will delayprevent seeking or obtaining nee
approvals to market these products, (viii) the thskt the U.S. Biomedical Advanced Research & Dawalent Authority (‘BARDA”) may no
complete the procurement set forth in its soli@mtafor the acquisition of smallpox antiviral fdret strategic national stockpile, or may comyg
it on different terms, (ix) the risk that the vallatand competitive nature of the biotechnologyusitdy may hamper SIGA’efforts, (x) the ris
that the changes in domestic and foreign economicraarket conditions may adversely affect SI&Ability to advance its research ol
products, and (xi) the effect of federal, stata] oreign regulation on SIGA’s businesses. All sémhvarddooking statements are current ¢
as of the date on which such statements were ns@& does not undertake any obligation to publighgdate any forwartboking statement-
reflect events or circumstances after the date liochwany such statement is made or to reflect toewence of unanticipated events.

Introduction

SIGA Technologies, Inc. is referred to throughduis teport as “SIGA,” “the Company,” “we” or “us.”

Since we were incorporated in Delaware on DeceriBerl995, SIGA has pursued the research, develdpamehcommercialization
novel products for the prevention and treatmergesfous infectious diseases, including productsufs in defense against biological war
agents such as smallpox and Arenaviruses. Ourdeadlict, ST-246®is an orally administered antiviral drug that tasgerthopox viruses.
December 2006 the FDA granted Orphan Drug desigmath ST-246®for the prevention and treatment of smallpox. InyM2009, wi
submitted a response to a Request for ProposalR"RBEsued by BARDA with respect to the purchase ofrillion courses of a smallp
antiviral (the “BARDA Smallpox RFP")and, in June 2009, BARDA informed us that our resgoto the BARDA Smallpox RFP was dee
technically acceptable and in the competitive rafideere can be no assurance that SIGA or any otirapany will receive an award purst
to this RFP. Further, any award on this RFP woeldibject to negotiation of final contract termd apecifications; thus, the final terms ur
any contract with BARDA may be materially differghtin those indicated in the RFP.

Our antiviral programs are designed to preventinit Ithe replication of the viral pathogen. As aul of the success of our efforts
develop products for use against agents of biokdgi@rfare, we have not spent significant resoutoefsirther the development of our anti-
infective technologies.




Product Candidates and Market Potential
SIGA Biological Warfare Defense Product Portfolio

Anti-Orthopoxvirus Drug: Smallpox virus is classified as a Category A aganthe U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Rrigwe
(“CDC") and is considered one of the most significant tisréar use as a biowarfare agent. While deliberatt®duction of any pathoger
agent would be devastating, we believe the onelhblals the greatest potential for harming the gandrS. population is smallpox. At pres
there is no effective drug with which to treat oeyent smallpox infections. To address this seriials SIGA scientists have identified a I
drug candidate, ST-246@®@hich inhibits vaccinia, cowpox, ectromelia (mousep monkeypox, camelpox, and variola (smallpox)lication ir
cell culture and in various animal models, but otfter unrelated viruses. Given the safety conceitts the current smallpox vaccine, th
should be several uses for an effective smallpdiviead drug: prophylactically, to protect the nammune who are at risk to expost
therapeutically, to reduce mortality and morbiditythose infected with the smallpox virus; andligsis an adjunct to the smallpox vaccin
order to reduce the frequency of serious adversatevdue to the live virus used for vaccinationDetember 2005, the FDA approved our |
application for ST-246®. In June 2006, we succdlgsitompleted the first human clinical safety stuafyST-246®.The trial showed the dr
to be welltolerated in healthy human volunteers at all tesieglly administered doses. In addition, data frblmod level exposure w
sufficient to support once a day dosing. The stueyg a doublédslind, randomized, placebo controlled, and ascendingle dose study. In 20!
ST-246®became the first drug ever to demonstrate 100%egption against human smallpox virus in a primai tonducted at the CD
Later in 2006, in two nofmuman primate trials the drug demonstrated 100%eption for animals injected with high doses of tkeypox virus
One study was sponsored by the National Institéit&llergy and Infectious Diseases (“NIAID”) at th¢ational Institutes of Health (“NIH”
The second study was conducted by the U.S. ArmyiddédResearch Institute of Infectious Diseases GWRIID") and was funded by t
Department of Defense’s Threat Reduction AgencyTRA"). In late 2006, ST-246®@eceived Orphan Drug designation for both the tneat
and prevention of smallpox. An additional Phasériical trial was started in February 2007. Thaltiwas a 21 day, escalating, multiplese
Phase | safety, tolerability and pharmacokinetiaslys of ST-246®at three different dosages in healthy volunteeh& Jtudy was completed
December 2007 and as reported the preliminaryteuicated that the drug is safe and well tobdtat all tests doses. In August 2008 a F
| bioequivalence was performed at the Orlando €4hResearch Center in Orlando, Florida to com@ar46®polymorph form | to form \
We submitted the final Clinical Study Report forathstudy to the FDA in May 2009. In June 2009 a tplmase multiple do:
safety/pharmacokinetics evaluation clinical trigdsabegun to evaluate the effectiveness of ST-24t6@fferent dosage levels. We estimate
final Clinical Study Report for that study will lsibmitted to the FDA in the second quarter of 2@@ring 2006, SIGA was awarded gre
and contracts from the NIH totaling approximateBi $nillion for the continued development of ST-246®2007, SIGA was awarded a gt
from the NIH for a total of approximately $600,000, support the development of ST-246® treatmensméllpox vaccineelated adver:
events. In 2008, SIGA was awarded a $55 milliontizar from the NIH to support the development odliidnal formulations and orthopox-
related indications for ST-246®. In 2008, SIGA vedso awarded $20 million from the NIH in supplenagritinding to the Compang’existing
$16.5 million contract. In September 2009, SIGAeireed a thregrear, $3.0 million Phase Il grant from the NIH tanél the continue
development of ST-246® treatment of smallpox vaeegiglated adverse events.

Anti-Arenavirus Drug:Arenaviruses are hemorrhagic fever viruses thae Hsen classified as Category A agents by the COeCtal th
great risk that they pose to public health andonati safety. Among the Category A viruses recoghizgthe CDC, there are four hemorrh:
fever arenaviruses (Junin, Machupo, Guanarito aftaSviruses) for which there are no FDA approvedttments available. In order to
this threat, SIGA scientists have identified twadedrug candidates, ST-294 and 333, which have demonstrated significant antiva@ivity
in cell culture assays against arenavirus pathogsfeshave also demonstrated the therapeutic efficd&ST-193 in several animal challer
studies. SIGA also has programs against other hbawgic fever viruses, including Dengue Fever, Rifilley Fever, Lymphocyt
choriomeningitis virus and Ebola. We believe the availability of hemorrhagic fever virus antiidrugs will address national and glc
security needs by acting as a significant deteregmt defense against the use of arenaviruses gsomeaf bioterrorism. In 2006, SIC
received a thregear grant of $6.0 million from the NIH to suppdine development of antiviral drugs for Lassa fevieus. In 2008, SIG,
received a two-year Phase | grant of $1.0 milliamf the NIH to support the development of antividaigs against Dengue Fever.
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Broad Spectrum Antiviral Research and development efforts currently undgrat SIGA are aimed at developing a comprehe
biodefense against those microbial agents modylikebe deployed as biological weapons. A brepdetrum antiviral would have great uti
against natural or intentional introduction of theents into population centers, as well as peogidreatment option in areas where t
pathogens are endemic. Screening for antiviralnagapecific CDC Category A and B pathogens,zitif SIGA’s high throughput screeni
program, led to the identification of a unique eotion of compounds with broad spectrum antivicivity. Compounds with potent, ndoxic
activity against a diversity of virus families acarrently being characterized with respect to argivmechanism(s) of action. SIGA chemi-
informatics tools are being employed to explore datermine structuraetivity relationships within lead compound seri€e. date, we hay
documented sub-micromolar activity of the broadcspen antiviral candidate, SB69, against viruses in the Poxviridae, Filoviri
Bunyaviridae, Arenaviridae, Flaviviridae, Togava® Retroviridae, and Picornaviridae families. Leades are currently being assessed
respect to the mechanism of antiviral action, fdataed for testingn vivo, and administered by multiple routes and dosigmens to thos
small animal species traditionally used for modgline pathogenesis of Category A viruses. In Seipeera009, the Company was award:
two-year, $1.7 million grant from the NIAID to supp the development of broad spectrum, smaslecule inhibitors of bunyaviruses. 7
grant was awarded under the American Recovery amavBstment Act of 2009 (“the Recovery Act”).

Dengue antiviral: Dengue fever, dengue hemorrhagic fever, and despock syndrome are caused by one of four sertgpeengu
virus of the genus Flavivirus. Dengue is considdrgdhe World Health Organization to be the mogpamtant arthropodborne viral disea:
with an estimated 5000 million people infected with the virus each iyeghere is currently no approved antiviral or viaecfor the treatme
or prevention of dengue-mediated disease. SIGAeatlyr has four drug series in the mi@ical development stage, each with activity ag:
all four serotypes of virus. Compounds from twalodse series have recently shown efficacy in ameumodel of disease, including $I€
and ST-148. In 2008, SIGA was awarded a $1.0 milllvoyear grant from the NIH to support lead optimizatand animal efficacy for o
Dengue antiviral program.

Market for Biological Defense Programs

The market for biodefense countermeasures has gdvamatically as a result of the increased awaspnéghe threat of global ten
activity in the wake of the September 11, 2001otest attacks and the October 2001 anthrax lettacks. The U.S. government is the princ
source of worldwide biodefense spending. Most ddvernment spending on biodefense programs refsaits development funding awarc
by NIAID, BARDA and the Department of Defense (“DfDPand procurement of countermeasures by The U.S.rbepat of Health ar
Human Services (“HHS"the CDC and the DoD. The U.S. government is nowdhgest source of development and procurementirignicr
academic institutions and biotechnology compan@sdacting biodefense research or developing vascamel immunotherapies directet
potential agents of bioterror or biowarfare.

The Project BioShield Act, which became law in 208dthorizes the procurement of countermeasurdsidtogical, chemical, radiologic
and nuclear attacks for the Strategic National Igiide (“SNS”), which is a national repository of medical asset$ emuntermeasures desig
to provide federal, state and local public healgferecies with medical supplies needed to treat tladteeted by terrorist attacks, natt
disasters, industrial accidents and other publadtheemergencies. Project BioShield provided appatipns of $5.6 billion to be expended ¢
ten years. The Pandemic and All-Hazards Preparsdhet (“the Preparedness Act’passed in 2006, established BARDA as the a¢
responsible for awarding procurement contractdfomedical countermeasures and providing developfiueing for advanced research
development in the biodefense arena. The Prepassdxa supplements the funding available undereetdgioShield for radiological, nucle
chemical and biological countermeasures, and pesvidnding for infectious disease pandemics. Fundiim BARDA is created by annt
appropriations by Congress. Congress also appteprémnual funding for the CDC for the procurenedmedical assets and countermeas
for the SNS and for NIAID to conduct biodefensesgash. This appropriation funding supplements arteawailable under Project BioShield.
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Since 2002, HHS has provided over $10 billion tat& and localities through various programs t@aeaé their emergency preparedi
activities and to better enable them to respontdhnge-scale, natural or mamade public health emergencies, such as acts tdrlmoism o
infectious disease outbreaks. One of the majoremscin the field of biological warfare agentsnsadipox —although declared extinct in 1€
by the World Health Organization (WHO), there itheeat that a rogue nation or a terrorist group fmeye an illegal inventory of the virus t
causes smallpox. The only legal inventories of thras are held under extremely tight security a&& ®©DC in Atlanta, Georgia and a
laboratory in Russia. As a result of this threla, t).S. government has announced its intent to rsigikéficant expenditures on finding a wa
counteract the virus if turned loose by terror@ten a battlefield.

In addition to the U.S. government, we bedi¢vat other potential additional markets for take ©f biodefense countermeasures include:

e state and local governments, which we expect manteeested in these products to protetergency responders, such as police
and emergency medical personnel;

e foreign governments, including both defense andipliealth agencies;
e non-governmental organizations and multinationahganies, including transportation and security canmgs; and

e health care providers, including hospitals andicéin

The FDA amended its regulations, effective June2B02, so that certain new drug and biological potsl used to reduce or prevent
toxicity of chemical, biological, radiological, aruclear substances may be approved for use in fautmased on evidence of effectiver
derived only from appropriate animal studies ang additional supporting data. We believe that tfiange could make it possible for u
have our products which have been proven effedtivenimal studies to be approved for sale moreldyithan under the standard regula
path.

SIGA Antivirals Product Portfolio

SIGA currently has the following antiviral programich are in various stages of development, rapffiom initial research and screer
to Phase | human clinical trials: Orthopox antilkifdew World Arenavirus antiviral, Old World Areniaus antiviral, Filovirus (Ebola .
Marburg) antivirals, Dengue Fever virus antiviahd Bunyavirus antivirals. Currently there are ppraved antivirals available against an
these viruses.

Technology

Antiviral Technology: Two Approaches

SIGA has two approaches to the discoverydeatlopment of new antiviral compounds: high-thigqug screening (“HTS”and ratione
drug design. For HTS SIGA uses whole cell virushitton assays, pseudotype virus inhibition assagswell as validated target biochem
assays. SIGA currently has a 200,000 small molecafepound library irouse that is utilized for screening in these vaiassays. Tt
strategy allows for both target specific and targetitral screening and identification of novel @nél compounds. Compounds are
screened for toxicity in various cell lines to diygea therapeutic index (“TI"Which is the concentration that the compound isctéex 50% o
the cells (CC50) divided by the concentration ompound required to inhibit 50% of the virus (ECJ0)= CC50/EC50). Once hits ¢
identified with an acceptable Tl they are seledtedchemical optimization and proceed into the\drdl drug development pipeline.

For rational drug design SIGA applies advanezeptor structurbased Virtual Ligand Screening technology for ligémhibitor discovery
The analysis of the structure reveals potentiatlsugable” pockets. The technology allows us taadithe threedimensional structure of t
target receptor to screen large virtaampound collections as well as databases of comatlgravailable compounds and prioritize them
subsequent experimental validation. Rational dregjgh is also used to develop structure activigti@nships and lead optimization.
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Collaborative Research and Licenses
We have entered into the following license agredmemllaborative research arrangements and cdstrac

National Institutes of Health . On September 23, 2009, the Company was awartigd-gear, $1.7 million grant from the NIH to supf
the development of broad spectrum, smadllecule inhibitors of bunyaviruses. The grant \wasrded under the Recovery Act. In Septel
2009, SIGA was awarded a three-year, $3.0 millibage Il grant from the NIH to fund the continuedelepment of ST-246@reatment ¢
smallpox vaccine-related adverse events. On Seieint2008, we were awarded a fiyear, $55.0 million contract from the NIAID to supt
the development of additional formulations and opibx-related indications for SZ46, our lead orthopox drug candidate. In Septerdbés
we were awarded $20.0 million from the NIAID in glgmental funding to our existing $16.5 million ¢t@tt, to accelerate proc
development related to large-scale manufacturirgy @ackaging of ST-246® and commercsable validation. The term of the contract
extended through September 28, 2011. In Septem®@8, 2ve received a twgear, $1.0 million Phase | grant from the NIH todulea
optimization and animal efficacy for our Dengueidndl program. In September 2007, we received e-year, $600,000 grant supporting
development of ST-246® treatment of smallpox vaegailated adverse events. In July 2007, the NIHd&dhus a twagrear grant for a total
$530,000 to support our Strep Bacterial Commensalt®f (“BCV”) program as a subunit vaccine delivery system. |k and Augu
2006, the NIH awarded us a $16.5 million, 3-yeartact and a $4.8 million, gear grant, respectively, both to advance the dgweént of oL
lead drug candidate, ST-246®. In September 20@6NiH awarded us a $6.0 million,y@ar grant for the development of an antiviral dfon
Lassa fever virus. In August 2004, we were awarded grants totaling approximately $11.1 million $apport our work on smallpox &
arenaviruses. For the years ending December 3B, 2008, and 2007, we have recognized gregitged revenue of $3.1 million, $3.0 milli
and $2.6 million, respectively, from grants witletNIH. In 2009, 2008 and 2007, we recognized $idilllon, $5.0 million, and $2.2 milliol
respectively, in revenue from our contracts with MiH.

SIGA receives cash payments from the NIH undegriésits on monthly and semrienthly bases, and under its contract on a mottth$ys
as the work is performed and the related revenuedsgnized. SIGA current NIH grants and contracts do not includiestone payment
The agreements can be cancelled for perfermance and if cancelled, the Company will reaeive funds for additional future work under
agreements.

For a discussion of research and developmepenses, see ltem 7, “ManagemeriRiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiorl
Results of Operations”

Competition

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical industriechegacterized by rapidly evolving technology amgnse competition. Our competit
include most of the major pharmaceutical compamibich have financial, technical and marketing reses significantly greater than ot
Biotechnology and other pharmaceutical competitoctude Acambis, Achillion Pharmaceuticals, Arrow€Fapeutics, Celldex Therapeut
Inc., Bavarian Nordic AS, Chimerix Inc., Bioportirigrgent BioSolutions and Novartis. Academic insititus, governmental agencies and ¢
public and private research organizations are @salucting research activities and seeking patagtegtion and may commercialize prodi
on their own or through joint venture.

Our biodefense product candidates face significambpetition for U.S. government funding for bothvelepment and procurement
medical countermeasures for biological, chemicall anuclear threats, diagnostic testing systems ath@roemergency preparedn
countermeasures.

Our potential commercial opportunity could be rezthor eliminated if our competitors develop and patialize products that are sa
more effective, have fewer side effects, are morevenient or are lessxpensive than any products that we may developdttition, we ma
not be able to compete effectively if our produahdidates do not satisfy government procurementimeaents, particularly requirements
the U.S. government with respect to biodefenseyotsd




Human Resources and Research Facilities

As of February 15, 2010, we had 55 firfke employees. None of our employees is covered bgllective bargaining agreement, anc
consider our employee relations to be good. Ouearh and development facilities are located inv@lis, Oregon where we le¢
approximately 18,100 square feet under a leaseeagnet signed in January 2007, which expires in Béeg 2011. Our facility in Oregon t
been improved to meet the special requirementsssace for the operation of our research and dewsdop activities. In January 2010
entered into a sublease agreement for a 5,700ep@radditional research facility in Corvallistggon.

Intellectual Property and Proprietary Rights

Our commercial success will depend in parbonand our collaboratorability to obtain and maintain patent protection dorr proprietar
technologies, drug targets and potential produnts ta effectively preserve our trade secrets. Beeanf the substantial length of time
expense associated with bringing potential prodtlesugh the development and regulatory clearamoegsses to reach the marketplace
pharmaceutical industry places considerable impogan obtaining patent and trade secret protecliba patent positions of pharmaceu:
and biotechnology companies can be highly uncertaith involve complex legal and factual questions. dénsistent policy regarding
breadth of claims allowed in biotechnology patdras emerged to date. Accordingly, we cannot predetype and breadth of claims alloy
in these patents.

We have exclusively licensed the rights to fivaiexss U.S. patents and one issued European patezge fatents have varying lives and
are related to licensed technology for the stregh @rampositive products. We have one additional patepliegtion in the U.S. and o
application in Europe relating to this technologflyaddition, we have a nonexclusive license fromsk¥iagton University of one issued pa
in the U.S. This patent is for the technology uedhe Gramnegative product opportunities. We are also exetusiwner of six U.S. pater
and eleven U.S. utility patent applications. On¢helse U.S. utility applications relates to our Bggoduct opportunities. We are also exclu
owner of two U.S. provisional patent applications.

The following are our patent positions as of Decengi, 2009:

Number
Non-
Exclusively Number
PATENTS Licensed Owned by Patent Expiration Dates
from SIGA
Washington
Univ.
S, X 6 2014 (4), 2015 (3), 2021 (1), 2C
(2), 2013 (1), 2017 (1)
Europe 2 2021 (1), 2015 (1), 2014 (1)




Number

APPLICATIONS Owned by
SIGA
U.S. applications 11
U.S. provisionals 2
PCT 11
Australia 6
Canada 10
Europe 9
Japan 9

We also rely upon trade secret protection for @mnfidential and proprietary information. No asswarman be given that other compa
will not independently develop substantially equeve proprietary information and techniques or otfise gain access to our trade secre
that we can meaningfully protect our trade secrets.

Government Regulation

Regulatory Approval Process.Regulation by governmental authorities in the UhiBtates and other countries will be a signifidactol
in the production and marketing of any biopharmécalproducts that we may develop. The nature thedextent to which such regulati
may apply to us will vary depending on the natur@my such products. Virtually all of our potenttd@bpharmaceutical products will reqt
regulatory approval by governmental agencies gaa@ommercialization. In particular, human therdfeproducts are subject to rigorous pre-
clinical and clinical testing and other approvadgedures by the FDA and similar health authoritieforeign countries. Various federal stati
and regulations also govern or influence the mastufang, safety, labeling, storage, record keepamgl marketing of such products. -
process of obtaining these approvals and the subségompliance with appropriate federal and foreitatutes and regulations requires
expenditure of substantial resources.

In order to test clinically, produce and marketdarats for diagnostic or therapeutic use, a compangt comply with mandatory procedu
and safety standards established by the FDA andoamhle agencies in foreign countries. Before begm human clinical testing of
potential new drug in the United States, a compangt file an IND and receive clearance from the FDAis application is a summary of
pre-clinical studies that were conducted to charare the drug, including toxicity and safety stgjias well as an idepth discussion of t
human clinical studies that are being proposed.

The pre-marketing program required for apptdw the FDA of a new drug typically involves aé-consuming and costly threéas
process. In Phase |, trials are conducted with allsnumber of healthy patients to determine thdyesafety profile, the pattern of dr
distribution and metabolism. In Phase I, trialse aonducted with small groups of patients afflictéth a target disease in order to deterr
preliminary efficacy, optimal dosages and expanedence of safety. In Phase Ill, large scale, inugdhter comparative trials are condu
with patients afflicted with a target disease idarrto provide enough data for statistical prooéfficacy and safety required by the FDA
others.

The FDA amended its regulations, effective June2B02, so that certain new drug and biological potsl used to reduce or prevent
toxicity of chemical, biological, radiological, gruclear substances may be approved for use in ratnased on evidence of effectiver
derived only from appropriate animal studies ang afditional supporting data.
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The FDA closely monitors the progress of each efttiree phases of clinical testing and may, inligsretion, reevaluate, alter, suspen
terminate the testing based on the data that haee hccumulated to thabint and its assessment of the risk/benefit radidhe patien
Estimates of the total time required for carrying such clinical testing vary between two and tearg. Upon completion of such clini
testing, a company typically submits a New Drug Kggtion (“NDA”) or Product License Application (1FA") to the FDA that summarizes-
results and observations of the drug during thaadi testing. Based on its review of the NDA or®Rlthe FDA will decide whether to apprc
the drug. This review process can be quite lengthy,approval for the production and marketing né& pharmaceutical product can requ
number of years and substantial funding; therebeano assurance that any approvals will be gramtealtimely basis, if at all.

Once the product is approved for sale, FDdulations govern the production process and margetctivities, and a postarketing testin
and surveillance program may be required to mordtottinuously a produd’ usage and its effects. Product approvals may ithelrawn if
compliance with regulatory standards is not mairgdi Other countries in which any products devaldpeus may be marketed could impo
similar regulatory process.

An alternative regulatory mechanism is also av#élabhe Emergency Use Authorization authority abothe FDA Commissioner
strengthen the public health protections againgbbical, chemical, radiological, and nuclear agehgit may be used to attack the Amer
people or the U.S. armed forces. Under this authatie FDA Commissioner may allow medical counteasures to be used in an emerg
to diagnose, treat, or prevent serious or tlifieeatening diseases or conditions caused by symhts when there is no adequate, approvec
available alternative.

Legislation and Regulation Related to BioterrorismCounteragents and Pandemic PreparednesBecause some of our drug candid
are intended for the treatment of diseases that masyit from acts of bioterrorism or for pandemiegaredness, they may be subject tc
specific legislation and regulation described betowd elsewhere herein.

Project BioShield. The Project BioShield Act of 2004 provides expetlipgocedures for bioterrorism related procurement @awvarding ¢
research grants, making it easier for HHS to quickdmmit funds to countermeasure projects. PrdggaShield relaxes procedures under
Federal Acquisition Regulation for procuring prageor services used in performing, administeringsopporting biomedical countermeas
research and development. In addition, if the Sagyeof HHS deems that there is a pressing neeje@rBioShield authorizes the Secretat
use an expedited award process, rather than thmahqueer review process, for grants, contracts @mperative agreements relatec
biomedical countermeasure research and developmsénity.

Under Project BioShield, the Secretary of HHS, wite concurrence of the Secretary of the DepartmeHbmeland Security and upon
approval of the President, can contract to purchasg@proved countermeasures for the SNS in spédfreumstances. Congress is notifie
a recommendation for a stockpile purchase aftesitheatial approval. Project BioShield specifiest th@ompany supplying the countermea
to the SNS is paid on delivery of a substantiatiporof the countermeasure. To be eligible for pase under these provisions, the Secret
HHS must determine that there are sufficient anigfeatory clinical results or research data, idahg data, if available, from prelinical anc
clinical trials, to support a reasonable conclusibat the countermeasure will qualify for approeallicensing within eight years. Proj
BioShield also allows the Secretary of HHS to atiteothe emergency use of medical products tha¢ Inat yet been approved by the FDA
exercise this authority, the Secretary of HHS neosiclude that:

e the agent for which the countermeasure is desigaactause serious or life-threatening disease;
e the product may reasonably be believed to be @ffeat detecting, diagnosing, treating or prevegtine disease;
e the known and potential benefits of the productvaigh its known and potential risks; and

e there is no adequate alternative to the produttistegppproved and available.

Although this provision permits the Secretary of $lltb circumvent the FDA approval process, its useld likely be limited to rai
circumstances.




Public Readiness and Emergency Preparedness Adthe Public Readiness and Emergency Preparedneso”PREP Act, provid
immunity for manufacturers from all claims undeatet or federal law for “loss” arising out of thengidistration or use of acbvere:
countermeasure.” However, injured persons maylstifig a suit for “willful misconduct’against the manufacturer under some circumste
“Covered countermeasures” include security countasures and “qualified pandemic or epidemic pra&iucicluding products intended
diagnose or treat pandemic or epidemic diseasb, asipandemic vaccines, as well as treatmentsdetkto address conditions caused by
products. For these immunities to apply, the Sacyatf HHS must issue a declaration in cases ofiphiealth emergency or “credible riskf
a future public health emergency. Since 2007, tber&@ary of HHS has issued 8 declarations undelPfRREP Act to protect from liabili
countermeasures that are necessary to preparatibe for potential pandemics or epidemics, inahgda declaration on October 10, 2008,
provides immunity from tort liability as it relatés smallpox countermeasures.

Foreign Regulation.As noted above, in addition to regulations in th@ted States, we might be subject to a varietyooéifjn regulatior
governing clinical trials and commercial sales disdribution of our drug candidates. Whether orwetobtain FDA approval for a product,
must obtain approval of a product by the comparabfgulatory authorities of foreign countries befeve can commence clinical trials
marketing of the product in those countries. Thiei@dime required to obtain clearance to markptauct in a particular foreign jurisdicti
may vary substantially, based upon the type, coxityl@nd novelty of the pharmaceutical drug cantlidaéhe specific requirements of t
jurisdiction, and in some countries whether the Hias previously approved the drug for marketinge féquirements governing the conduc
clinical trials, marketing authorization, pricingdireimbursement vary from country to country.

Regulations Regarding Government Contracting.The status of an organization as a government actotr in the United States ¢
elsewhere means that the organization is also slutgjevarious statutes and regulations, includimg Federal Acquisition Regulation, wh
governs the procurement of goods and services byces of the United States and other countriees&lgoverning statutes and regulat
can impose stricter penalties than those normalbfieable to commercial contracts, such as crimamal civil damages liability and suspen:
and debarment from future government contractingaddition, pursuant to various statutes and reéigms, government contracts can
subject to unilateral termination or modificatioy the government for convenience in the United &3taand elsewhere, detailed audi
requirements, statutorily controlled pricing, sdogcand subcontracting restrictions and statutariBndated processes for adjudicating cor
disputes.

American Recovery and Reinvestment ActThe Recovery Act was passed on February 13, 2088sponse to the current economic ct
The Recovery Act is designed to spur job creatioth preservation, increase economic activity anestwment in longerm economic growt
and improve levels of accountability and transpeyeim government spending, in part through graikke the one we were awarded
September 2009. Recipients of Recovery Act fundseqguired to report quarterly on the amount ofitugpent, the status of the funded prc
the number of jobs created and/or saved as a mfstile funded project, and other details, all diich are made available to the public thrc
the federal governmest'official Recovery Act website, Recovery.gov. Cdiance with Recovery Act requirements will thus ahxe increase
public disclosure regarding our activities, and rirayease our costs.

Availability of Reports and Other Information

We file annual, quarterly, and current reports,xgratatements, and other documents with the Séssirgnd Exchange Commiss
(“SEC”) under the Securities Exchange Act of 198% (“Exchange Act”)The public may read and copy any materials thafilwewith the
SEC at the SEG'Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, NWshifegton, DC 20549. The public may obtain inforroaton the operatic
of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC-800-SECO330. Also, the SEC maintains an Internet webkié tontains reports, prc
and information statements, and other informatiegarding issuers, including us, that file electtally with the SEC. The public can obt
any documents that we file with the SEC at www gee.
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In addition, our company website can be found am ltiternet at www.siga.com. The website contairferination about us and c
operations. Copies of each of our filings with 8 C on Form 10-K, Form 10-Q, and FornK8and all amendments to those reports, c:
viewed and downloaded free of charge as soon a®meahly practicable after the reports and amendimara electronically filed with
furnished to the SEC. To view the reports, acceswwiga.com, click on “Investor Relations” and “SE{ing”.

The following corporate governance related docusiarg also available on our website:

e Code of Ethics and Business Conduct

e Amended and Restated Audit Committee Charter

e Compensation Committee Charter

e Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee €hart

e Procedure for Sending Communications to the Bo&Rimectors

e Procedures for Security Holder Submission of NorigaRecommendations

e 2004 Policy on Confidentiality of Information ane&irities Trading

To review these documents, access www.siga.contlarkdon “Corporate Governance”.

Any of the above documents can also be obtaingatiitt by any shareholder upon request to the SmgreSIGA Technologies, Inc.,
East 62dStreet, New York, New York 10065.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

This report contains forward-looking statetseand other prospective information relating tdufe events. These forwaloeking
statements and other information are subject i@ @d uncertainties that could cause our actsalteto differ materially from our historic
results or currently anticipated results includihg following:

Risks Related to Our Financial Position and Need foAdditional Financing

We have incurred operating losses since our inceptand expect to incur net losses and negative cigiv for the foreseeable future.

We incurred net losses of approximately $17.6 onlli$8.6 million, and $5.6 million, for the yeansded December 31, 2009, 2008,
2007, respectively. On January 1, 2009, we receghi $2.7 million increase in our opening accunedladeficit balance reflecting t
cumulative effect of a change in accounting prileeigcorded in connection with certain warrantadquire shares of the Compasigommo
stock. As of December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 acaumulated deficit was approximately $90.9 mil)i&70.6 million, and $62.0 millic
respectively. We expect to continue to have sigaift operating expenses. We will need to genelgtgfisant revenues to achieve
maintain profitability.

We cannot guarantee that we will achieve sufficrewenues for profitability. Even if we do achigwefitability, we cannot guarantee t
we can sustain or increase profitability on a qréyrtor annual basis in the future. If revenuesagstower than we anticipate, or if opera
expenses exceed our expectations or cannot betedljascordingly, then our business, results of apmrs, financial condition and cash flc
will be materially and adversely affected. Becaosestrategy might include acquisitions of othesibesses, acquisition expenses and any
used to make these acquisitions will reduce ouilabhla cash.

Our business will suffer if we are unable to raiselditional equity funding.

Unless and until we successfully sell any of owduicts, such as pursuant to the BARDA Smallpox R#Pwill continue to be depend:
on our ability to raise money through the exerdbexisting options or warrants or through the é&ste of new equity. There is no guara
that we will continue to be successful in raisingls funds. If we are unable to raise additionalityqunds, we may be forced to discontinu
cease certain operations. We currently have safftcoperating capital to finance our operationsobeythe next twelve months. Our anr
operating needs vary from year to year dependirggn tpe amount of revenue generated through greotdracts and licenses and the am
of projects we undertake, as well as the amoumsdurces we expend, in connection with acquistahof which may materially differ fro
year to year and may adversely affect our busir

Any additional equity that we raise may containmsy such as liquidation and other preferences @hatnot favorable to us or «
stockholders. If we raise additional funds throughiaboration and licensing arrangements with tipiadties, it may be necessary to reling
valuable rights to our technologies or product édates or grant licenses on terms that may noaberéble to us.
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Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our stock price is, and we expect it to remain, atile, which could limit investors’ ability to setock at a profit.
The volatile price of our stock makes it difficéidir investors to predict the value of their investits, to sell shares at a profit at any g

time, or to plan purchases and sales in advane@vriaty of factors may affect the market price of oommon stock. These include, but are
limited to:

e publicity regarding actual or potential clinicaktats relating to products under development bycomunpetitors or us;

e initiating, completing or analyzing, or a delayfailure in initiating, completing or analyzing, pcéinical or clinical trials or the desi
or results of these trials;

e achievement or rejection of regulatory approval®bycompetitors or us;

e announcements of technological innovations or nemroercial products by our competitors or us;
e developments concerning proprietary rights, inalgddatents;

e developments concerning our collaborations;

e regulatory developments in the United States argida countries;

e economic or other crises and other external factors

e period-to-period fluctuations in our revenues atiteoresults of operations; and

e changes in financial estimates by securities atalys

Additionally, because the volume of trading in @tock fluctuates significantly at times, any infation about SIGA in the media
result in significant volatility in our stock price

We will not be able to control many of thdaetors, and we believe that period-to-period conspas of our financiatesults will no
necessarily be indicative of our future performance

In addition, the stock market in general, and trerket for biotechnology companies in particulars lexperienced extreme price
volume fluctuations that may have been unrelatedisproportionate to the operating performancendividual companies. These broad ma
and industry factors may seriously harm the mapkiee of our common stock, regardless of our ojreygterformance.

A future issuance of preferred stock may adversaffect the rights of the holders of our common stor

Our certificate of incorporation allows our Boarfl Directors to issue up to 10,000,000 shares ofepred stock and to fix the voti
powers, designations, preferences, rights and foqpsions, limitations or restrictions of these sfmwithout any further vote or action by
stockholders. The rights of the holders of commmclswill be subject to, and could be adverselyetiéd by, the rights of the holders of
preferred stock that we may issue in the futuree ®Wsuance of preferred stock, while providing iddse flexibility in connection with o
future activities, could also have the effect ofking it more difficult for a third party to acquir@ majority of our outstanding voting stc
thereby delaying, deferring or preventing a chaingsontrol.

Concentration of ownership of our capital stock cloudelay or prevent a change of control.

Our directors, executive officers and principalc&twlders beneficially own a significant percenta@ur common stock. They also he
through the exercise or conversion of certain sgesy the right to acquire additional common sto8k a result, these stockholders, if ac
together, have the ability to significantly influen the outcome of corporate actions requiring $tadder approval. Additionally, tr
concentration of ownership may have the effectalfying or preventing a change in control of SIG¥. of December 31, 2009, directc
officers and principal stockholders beneficiallyreed approximately 31.0% of our stock.
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Risks Related to Our Dependence on U.S. Governme@bntracts and Grants

Most of our immediately foreseeable future revenwse contingent upon grants and contracts from thle S. government, and we may r
achieve sufficient revenues from these agreementattain profitability.

Until and unless we successfully sell any of owdoicts, our ability to generate revenues will l&rgiepend on our ability to enter it
additional research grants, collaborative agreespesitategic alliances, contracts and license awgats with third parties or maintain
agreements we currently have in place. Substantidlliof our revenues for the years ended DecerBhef009, 2008, and 2007, respectiv
were derived from grants and contracts. Our cunrenenue is primarily derived from contract workrgeperformed for the NIH under gra
and two major contracts which are scheduled toreXppm September 2011 through September 2013.

Our future business may be harmed as a result of fippvernment contracting process, which is a conitpet bidding process that involv
risks not present in the commercial contracting pess.

e We expect that a significant portion of the businésat we will seek in the near future will be undmvernment contracts
subcontracts awarded through competitive biddirgmngetitive bidding for government contracts presenhumber of risks that are
typically present in the commercial contractingqass, including:

e the need to devote substantial time and attenfiomamagement and key employees to the preparatibit® and proposals for contre
that may not be awarded to us;

e the need to accurately estimate the resourcesasiciructure that will be required to perform @owtract that we might be awarded:;
o the risk that the government will issue a requespfoposal to which we would not be eligible tspend:;

o the risk that third parties may submit protestsuo responses to requests for proposal that cesldtrin delays or withdrawals of the
requests for proposal; and

e the expenses that we might incur and the delaysateamight suffer if our competitors protest or dyage contract awards made tc

pursuant to competitive bidding, and the risk tivag such protest or challenge could result in g@seilbomission of bids based on modi
specifications, or in termination, reduction or rifieation of the awarded contract.

The U.S. government may choose to award éutantracts for the supply of smallpox avitids and other biodefense product candic
that we are developing to our competitors instefatb as. If we are unable to win particular contsaave may not be able to operate in
market for products that are provided under thaseracts for a number of years. For example, BARES issued a request for proposa
treatment courses for symptomatic individuals erplo® smallpox for the SNS. We have submitted pgsal responding to this request
proposal. We expect that our ability to secure ward will depend primarily on the technical mefsST-246®.The U.S. government m
purchase another compasyiroduct candidate instead. If we are unable tsistently win new contract awards over an extergksibd, or i
we fail to anticipate all of the costs and resosrtteat will be required to secure such contractrdsjaour growth strategy and our busin
financial condition, and operating results couldheterially adversely affected.

The success of our business with the U.S. governtiapends on our compliance with regulations andightions under our U.S.
government contracts and various federal statuteslaegulations.

Our business with the U.S. government is subjedpicific procurement regulations and a varietytber legal compliance obligatio
These laws and rules include those related to:

e procurement integrity;

e export control;

e government security regulations;

e employment practices;

e protection of the environment;

e accuracy of records and the recording of costs; and

o foreign corrupt practices.
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In addition, before awarding us any contracts,Wh®. government could require that we respondfaat@rily to a request to substant
our commercial viability and industrial capabilg@gieCompliance with these obligations increasespediormance and compliance costs. Fa
to comply with these regulations and requiremerdsld lead to suspension or debarment, for caugen fgovernment contracting
subcontracting for a period of time. The terminatef a government contract or relationship as alted our failure to satisfy any of the
obligations would have a negative impact on ourrajiens and harm our reputation and ability to precother government contracts in
future.

Unfavorable provisions in government contracts, seraf which may be customary, may harm our futurediness, financial condition an
potential operating results

Government contracts customarily contain provisitimet give the government substantial rights andedies, many of which are |
typically found in commercial contracts, includipgpvisions that allow the government to:

e terminate existing contracts, in whole or in pfot,any reason or no reason;

e unilaterally reduce or modify contracts or subcaats, including through the use of equitable paidgistments;
e cancel multi-year contracts and related ordersrifis for contract performance for any subsequeat lyecome unavailable;
e decline to exercise an option to renew a contract;

e exercise an option to purchase only the minimumuarmsepecified in a contract;

e decline to exercise an option to purchase the maxiramount specified in a contract;

e claim rights to products, including intellectuabperty, developed under the contract;

e take actions that result in a longer developmenéline than expected;

e direct the course of a development program in amaanot chosen by the government contractor;

e suspend or debar the contractor from doing busiwébsthe government or a specific government agenc

e pursue criminal or civil remedies under the Faltsrds Act and False Statements Act; and

e control or prohibit the export of products.

Generally, government contracts contain provisigesmitting unilateral termination or modificatioin whole or in part, at tt
governments convenience. Under general principles of govemmentracting law, if the government terminatesoatract for convenienc
the terminated company may recover only its inadime committed costs, settlement expenses andtmnofiwork completed prior to t
termination.

If the government terminates a contract for defahk defaulting company is entitled to recovertgdscurred and associated profits
accepted items only and may be liable for excesssdacurred by the government in procuring undgbtd items from another source.
government contracts could be terminated undeetbgsumstances. Some government contracts grargdiiernment the right to use, fo
on behalf of the U.S. government, any technologieseloped by the contractor under the governmentract. If we were to devel
technology under a contract with such a provisiea, might not be able to prohibit third parties,liting our competitors, from using tl
technology in providing products and services ®dhvernment.
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Risks Related to Product Development

Our business depends significantly on our succassdmpleting development of and commercializing droandidates that are still under
development. If we are unable to commercialize thelsug candidates, or experience significant delaysloing so, our business will be
materially harmed.

We have invested a substantial majority of our regf@nd financial resources in the developmentwfdrug candidates. Our ability

generate near-term revenue is particularly depdratethe success of our smallpox antiviral drugdidaite ST-246®The commercial succe
of our drug candidates will depend on many factodpding:

e successful development, formulation and cGMP soplef drug manufacturing that meets FDA requirersient

e successful development of animal models;

e successful completion of non-clinical developménmtluding studies in approved animal models;

e our ability to pay the expense of filing, prosengtidefending and enforcing patent claims and dtiteHectual property rights.
e successful completion of clinical trials;

e receipt of marketing approvals from the FDA andikinforeign regulatory authorities;

e adetermination by BARDA that our biodefense dragdidates should be purchased for the SNS pribb# approval,

e establishing commercial manufacturing processesipbwn or arrangements on reasonable terms wittraxt manufacturers;
e manufacturing stable commercial supplies of drugdaates, including availability of raw materials;

e launching commercial sales of the product, whesth@ne or in collaboration with others; and

e acceptance of the product by potential governmerstotners, physicians, patients, healthcare payods athers in the medic
community.

We expect to rely on FDA regulations knowntfas “animal rule™to obtain approval for our biodefense drug candislatThe animal ru
permits the use of animal efficacy studies togethigh human clinical safety trials to support arplgation for marketing approval. The
regulations are relatively new, and we have limi@gerience in the application of these rules #odtug candidates that we are developir
is possible that results from these animal efficsteylies may not be predictive of the actual effjcaf our drug candidates in humans. If we
not successful in completing the development amdnoercialization of our drug candidates, our busireaild be harmed.

We will not be able to commercialize our drug caddtes if our pre-clinical development efforts areinsuccessful, our clinical trials do not
demonstrate safety or our clinical trials or animatudies do not demonstrate efficacy.

Before obtaining regulatory approval for 8a&e of our drug candidates, we must conduct extemse<clinical development, clinical tri
to demonstrate the safety of our drug candidatdschnical or animal trials to demonstrate the eHfiy of our drug candidates. Rinical anc
clinical testing is expensive, difficult to designd implement, can take many years to completeésandcertain as to outcome. Success in pre
clinical testing and early clinical trials does mwisure that later clinical trials or animal effigastudies will be successful, and interim resof
a clinical trial or animal efficacy study do notoessarily predict final results.
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A failure of one or more of our clinical trials animal efficacy studies can occur at any stageestiri)g. We may experience numet
unforeseen events during, or as a result of cprécal testing and the clinical trial or animdfieacy study process that could delay or pre
our ability to receive regulatory approval or conmai@ize our drug candidates, including:

e regulators or institutional review boards may natharize us to commence a clinical trial or condaclinical trial at a prospective tr
site;

e we may decide, or regulators may require us, t@leonadditional preslinical testing or clinical trials, or we may alslm projects thi
we expect to be promising, if our preclinical testiical trials or animal efficacy studies proéugegative or inconclusive results;

e we might have to suspend or terminate our clirtigals if the participants are being exposed toceeptable health risks;

e regulators or institutional review boards may reguihat we hold, suspend or terminate clinical tigwaent for various reasol
including noncompliance with regulatory requirengent

e the cost of our clinical trials could escalate Aedome cost prohibitive;

e any regulatory approval we ultimately obtain maylingited or subject to restrictions or pagtproval commitments that render
product not commercially viable;

e we may not be successful in recruiting a sufficiunber of qualifying subjects for our clinicaks; and

o the effects of our drug candidates may not be #dsireld effects or may include undesirable sidectffer the drug candidates may
other unexpected characteristics.

We are in various stages of product development #mete can be no assurance of successful commeizadion.

In general, our research and development prograenatan early stage of development. To obtain FBlpproval for our biological warfa
defense products we will be required to perfornieast one animal efficacy model and provide aniarad human safety data. Our o
products will be subject to the usual FDA regulat@quirements which include a number of phasdesiing in humans.

The FDA has not approved any of our biopharmaceuficoduct candidates. Any drug candidate we develdl require significar
additional research and development efforts, inolyiéxtensive prelinical and clinical testing and regulatory appbwrior to commerci
sale. We cannot be sure our approach to drug disgawill be effective or will result in the develm@nt of any drug. We cannot predict v
certainty whether any drug resulting from our reskeand development efforts will be commerciallyagable within the next several years
if they will be available at all.
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Even if we receive initially positive painical or clinical results, such results do natan that similar results will be obtained in lattrge
of drug development, such as additional glieical testing or human clinical trials. All oo potential drug candidates are prone to the 1ié
failure inherent in pharmaceutical product develeptnincluding the possibility that none of our glieandidates will or can:

e be safe, non-toxic and effective;

e otherwise meet applicable regulatory standards;

e receive the necessary regulatory approvals;

e develop into commercially viable drugs;

e be manufactured or produced economically and @mgelscale;
e be successfully marketed;

e be reimbursed by government and private insureid; a

e achieve customer acceptance.

In addition, third parties may preclude us from keging our drugs through enforcement of their pietary rights that we are not aware
or third parties may succeed in marketing equivatersuperior drug products. Our failure to devedgfe, commercially viable drugs wo
have a material adverse effect on our businesandial condition and results of operations.

Risks Related to Commercialization

Because we must obtain regulatory clearance or othise operate under strict legal requirements inder to test and market our products
the U. S., we cannot predict whether or when wel wé permitted to commercialize our products.

A pharmaceutical product cannot generallyrizgketed in the U.S. until it has completed rigarpueclinical testing and clinical trials a
an extensive regulatory clearance process impleedelny the FDA. Pharmaceutical products typicallketanany years to satisfy regulat
requirements and require the expenditure of subiatarsources depending on the type, complexity movelty of the product and its intent
use.

Before commencing clinical trials in humans, we msisbmit and receive clearance from the FDA by reeainan IND applicatiol
Institutional review boards and the FDA oversericdil trials and such trials:

e must be conducted in conformance with the FDA ratijpnhs;

e must meet requirements for institutional review odoaversight;

e must meet requirements for informed consent;

e must meet requirements for good clinical and mastufing practices;
e are subject to continuing FDA oversight;

e may require large numbers of test subjects; and

e may be suspended by us or the FDA at any time i§ helieved that the subjects participating insthérials are being exposec
unacceptable health risks or if the FDA finds deficies in any of the Company’s IND applicationghe conduct of these trials.

Before receiving FDA clearance to market a produdhe absence of a medical or public health enmerngewe must demonstrate that
product is safe and effective on the patient pamrahat will be treated. Data we obtain from gtigical and clinical activities are suscept
to varying interpretations that could delay, liroit prevent regulatory clearances. Additionally, mave limited experience in conducting
managing the clinical trials and manufacturing psses necessary to obtain regulatory clearance.
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If full regulatory clearance of a product is grahtéhis clearance will be limited only to thosetetaand conditions for which the produc
demonstrated through clinical trials to be safe effidacious. We cannot ensure that any compounéldped by us, alone or with others,
prove to be safe and efficacious in clinical triated will meet all of the applicable regulatory uggments needed to receive full marke
clearance.

The biopharmaceutical market in which we competedanill compete is highly competitive.

The biopharmaceutical industry is characterizeddpid and significant technological change. Ourcess will depend on our ability
develop and apply our technologies in the desigh development of our product candidates and tdokstaand maintain a market for «
product candidates. There also are many compabib, public and private, including major pharmaaaitand chemical compani
specialized biotechnology firms, universities arigeo research institutions engaged in developireymphaceutical and biotechnology produ
Many of these companies have substantially greatancial, technical, research and developmentuiess, and human resources that
Competitors may develop products or other techrietothat are more effective than any that are bdegeloped by us or may obtain F
approval for products more rapidly than us. If wvemenence commercial sales of products, we still ncosipete in the manufacturing :
marketing of such products, areas in which we havexperience. Many of these companies also haveifaeturing facilities and establist
marketing capabilities that would enable such camgsmto market competing products through existthgnnels of distribution. Thr
companies with similar profiles are VaxGen, Inc.hieh is developing vaccines against anthrax, smoalland HIV/AIDS; Avan
Immunotherapeutics, Inc., which has vaccine progréon agents of biological warfare; and Chimerixg.}] which is developing an alternat
smallpox therapeutic.

Our potential products may not be acceptable in tharket or eligible for third-party reimbursemenesulting in a negative impact on our
future financial results.

Any product we develop may not achieve market aecee. The degree of market acceptance of any opmducts will depend on
number of factors, including:

e the establishment and demonstration in the medaaimunity of the clinical efficacy and safety othuroducts;
e the potential advantage of such products overiagisteatment methods;
e the cost of our products relative to their percdibenefits; and

e reimbursement policies of government and thirdyppetyors.

Physicians, patients or the medical community inegal may not accept or utilize any product we rdayelop. Our ability to gener:
revenues and income with respect to drugs, if deyeloped through the use of our technology wipetel, in part, upon the extent to wt
reimbursement for the cost of such drugs will bailable from thirdparty payors, such as government health administraiuthorities, priva
healthcare insurers, health maintenance organimtisharmacy benefits management companies and atiy@nizations. Thirgharty payor
are increasingly disputing the prices charged farmaceutical products. If thigghrty reimbursement was not available or sufficiengallow
profitable price levels to be maintained for drugsdevelop, it could adversely affect our business.

If our products harm people, we may experience puotlliability claims that may not be covered by imance.

We face an inherent business risk of exposure tengpial product liability claims in the event thdtugs we develop are alleged to c:
adverse effects on patients. Such risk exists fodycts being tested in human clinical trials, &l &s products that receive regulatory appt
for commercial sale. We have obtained and intenketp in place product liability insurance withpgest to drugs we develop. However,
may not be able to obtain such insurance. Evendh snsurance is obtainable, it may not be avalatila reasonable cost or in a suffic
amount to protect us against liability.
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We may be required to perform additional clinicaldls or change the labeling of our products if wa others identify side effects after our
products are on the market, which could harm sati#fghe affected product:s

If we or others identify side effects aftawyaf our products are on the market, or if mantfiaeg problems occur:

e regulatory approval may be withdrawn;

e reformulation of our products, additional clini¢géls, changes in labeling of our products maydspiired;
e changes to or re-approvals of our manufacturingities may be required,;

e sales of the affected products may drop signifigant

e our reputation in the marketplace may suffer; and

e lawsuits, including class action suits, may be gtdwagainst us.

Any of the above occurrences could harm or prewsaies of the affected products or could increase dbsts and expenses
commercializing and marketing these products.

Healthcare reform and controls on healthcare spendimay limit the price we charge for any productsdaithe amounts that we can se

The U.S. government and private insurers have densil ways to change, and have changed, the manwéiich healthcare services
provided in the U.S. Potential approaches and daimng recent years include controls on healthcaending and the creation of la
purchasing groups. In the future, the U.S. govemntmeay institute further controls and limits on hileeare spending, including through
Medicare and Medicaid programs. These controls mis might affect the payments we could colleconi sales of any produc
Uncertainties regarding future healthcare reforrd private market practices could adversely affagat ability to sell any of our produc
profitably in the U.S. At present, we do not foeseny change in FDA regulatory policies that woaltlrersely affect our developm
programs.

Laws and regulations governing international opefahs may preclude us from developing, manufacturiagd selling certain produc
candidates outside of the United States and requiseto develop and implement costly compliance pamgs.

As we continue to expand our operations outsidéhefUnited States, we must comply with nhumerousslawd regulations relating
international business operations. The creationiapdementation of international business practicespliance programs is costly and ¢
programs are difficult to enforce, particularly wleeliance on third parties is required.

The Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, or FCPA, prdkilziny U.S. individual or business from payingedffg, or authorizing payment
offering of anything of value, directly or indirdgtto any foreign official, political party or cdidate for the purpose of influencing any ac
decision of the foreign entity in order to assist tndividual or business in obtaining or retainmgsiness. The FCPA also obligates compi
whose securities are listed in the United Statesotoply with certain accounting provisions requirithe company to maintain books
records that accurately and fairly reflect all sactions of the corporation, including internatiosabsidiaries, and to devise and maintai
adequate system of internal accounting controlsrfi@rnational operations. The abtitbery provisions of the FCPA are enforced priryaloly
the U.S. Department of Justice. The SEC is involvét enforcement of the books and records prowisiof the FCPA.

Compliance with the FCPA is expensive and difficplrticularly in countries in which corruptionasrecognized problem. In addition,
FCPA presents particular challenges in the pharoiaeg industry, because, in many countries, hatpiare operated by the government,
doctors and other hospital employees are consideren officials. Certain payments to hospitasconnection with clinical studies and of
work have been deemed to be improper paymentsviergment officials and have led to FCPA enforcenastipns.
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Various laws, regulations and executive orders @dstrict the use and dissemination outside ofthiged States, or the sharing with cer
nonU.S. nationals, of information classified for naid security purposes, as well as certain prodants technical data relating to th
products. Our expanding presence outside of theedi8tates will require us to dedicate additioraburces to compliance with these laws,
these laws may preclude us from developing, maturfiag, or selling certain products and productdidates outside of the United Sta
which could limit our growth potential and increase development costs.

The failure to comply with laws governing intermettal business practices may result in substangaklties, including suspension
debarment from government contracting. Violatiorttef FCPA can result in significant civil and cniral penalties. Indictment alone under
FCPA can lead to suspension of the right to dormss with the U.S. government until the pendingnmdaare resolved. Conviction o
violation of the FCPA can result in long term diafification as a government contractor. The tertidmaof a government contract
relationship as a result of our failure to satisfyy of our obligations under laws governing intéioval business practices would hay
negative impact on our operations and harm ourtagjpm and ability to procure government contradise SEC also may suspend or
issuers from trading securities on United Statehamnrges for violations of the FCPA’s accountingvisions.

Risks Related to Manufacturing and Manufacturing Fetilities

Problems related to lar¢-scale commercial manufacturing could cause us telaly product launches or experience shortages ajqurcts.

Our drug candidates require several manufacturiagss and may involve complex techniques to asquedity and sufficient quantit
especially as the manufacturing scale increasesspf@ducts must be made consistently and in compdiavith a clearly defined manufactur
process. Accordingly, it is essential to be abledlidate and control the manufacturing procesas8ure that it is reproducible. Slight deviat
anywhere in the manufacturing process, includinioing materials, filling, labeling, packagingpsige and shipping and quality control
testing, some of which all pharmaceutical companieduding SIGA, experience from time to time, miasult in lot failures, delay in t
release of lots, product recalls or spoilage. Weneit be able to sell any lot that fails to satisélease testing specifications.

If third parties do not manufacture our drug candates or products in sufficient quantities and at atceptable cost or in compliance wi
regulatory requirements and specifications, the é®pment and commercialization of our drug candiéatcould be delayed, prevented or
impaired.

We currently rely on third parties to manufeie drug candidates that we require for girical and clinical development. In addition,
indicated in our response to the BARDA Smallpox RE& we intend to manufacture ST-246@ing contract manufacturers. Any signific
delay in obtaining adequate supplies of our druglictates could adversely affect our ability to depeor commercialize these drug candid:
We expect that we will rely on third parties forpartion of the manufacturing process for commersigbplies of drug candidates that
successfully develop. If our contract manufactusees unable to scalgp production to generate enough materials for cemial launch, tr
success of those products may be jeopardized. Quert and anticipated future dependence upon tferthe manufacture of our di
candidates may adversely affect our ability to dmvelrug candidates and commercialize any prochet teceives regulatory approval c
timely and competitive basis.

We currently rely on third parties to demonstratgulatory compliance and for quality assurance wi$pect to the drug candide
manufactured for us. We intend to continue to melythese third parties for these purposes withess production of commercial supplie:
drugs that we successfully develop. Manufacturegssabject to ongoing, periodic, unannounced inspeby the FDA and corresponding s
and foreign agencies or their designees to enstice @mpliance with applicable regulations.
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We cannot be certain that our present or futureufsaturers will be able to comply with these regolass and other FDA regulatc
requirements or similar regulatory requirementssiolet the U.S. While our contracts call for comptianwith all applicable regulatc
requirements, we do not control compliance by thes@ufacturers with these regulations and standdfradge or these third parties fail
comply with applicable regulations, sanctions colbkd imposed on us, which could significantly andeadely affect supplies of our di
candidates.

Our activities may involve hazardous materials, usfewvhich may subject us to environmental regulaydiabilities.

Our biopharmaceutical research and development tdoee involves the controlled use of hazardous eadioactive materials a
biological waste. We are subject to federal, state local laws and regulations governing the useufacture, storage, handling and disg
of these materials and certain waste products.ofith we believe that our safety procedures for lagndind disposing of these mater
comply with legally prescribed standards, the dékccidental contamination or injury from thesetenials cannot be completely eliminatec
the event of an accident, we could be held liabledamages, and this liability could exceed oupueses. The research and developi
activities of our company do not produce any unbbkaaardous products. We do use small amountsdidaative isotopes commonly uset
pharmaceutical research, which are stored, usedliapdsed of in accordance with Nuclear Regula@pynmission regulations. We maint
liability insurance in the amount of approximat&k,000,000 and we believe this should be suffidierover any contingent loss.

We believe that we are in compliance in all mategapects with applicable environmental laws agltations and currently do not exy
to make material additional capital expenditureseivironmental control facilities in the near tetfowever, we may have to incur signific
costs to comply with current or future environméfdas and regulations.

Risks Related to Sales of Biodefense Products toeth).S. Government

Our business could be adversely affected by a negeaudit by the U.S. government.

U.S. government agencies such as the Def@usgract Audit Agency (the “DCAA”)routinely audit and investigate governn
contractors. These agencies review a contractperformance under its contracts, cost structur@ @ompliance with applicable la
regulations and standards.

The DCAA also reviews the adequacy of, andoatractors compliance with, its internal control systems gudicies, including th
contractors purchasing, property, estimating, compensati@hraanagement information systems. Any costs foonoketimproperly allocatt

to a specific contract will not be reimbursed, whiluch costs already reimbursed must be refunélesh dudit uncovers improper or ille
activities, we may be subject to civil and crimipahalties and administrative sanctions, including:

e termination of contracts;
o forfeiture of profits;

e suspension of payments;
e fines; and

e suspension of prohibition from doing business wlith U.S. government.

In addition, we could suffer serious reputadibharm if allegations of impropriety were madaiagt us.
We may be subject to sanction for past non-comptiamwith certain regulatory audit requirements.

In June 2009 we became aware that we didcooiply with certain Department of Health and Hun&ervices (“DHHS”)regulation
requiring the submission of yearly audited stateimémthe Office of the Inspector General (“Ol®iffice of Audit Services. On September
2009, we submitted the required audits and relatattments to the OIG Office of Audit Services. e asked that the OIG not take
enforcement action in this matter. There can bassurance that no enforcement action will be takehis matter and, if taken, whether s
enforcement action would have a material advergaaton our operations.
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Laws and regulations affecting government contractsght make it more costly and difficult for us successfully conduct our busines
We must comply with numerous laws and regulatigrating to the formation, administration and perfance of government contra

which can make it more difficult for us to retaioraights under these contracts. These laws andatgns affect how we do business v
federal, state and local government agencies. Antfomgnost significant government contracting regoies that affect our business are:

e the Federal Acquisition Regulations, and ageswgeific regulations supplemental to the Federafjulgition Regulations, whic
comprehensively regulate the procurement, formaadministration and performance of government remts;

e the business ethics and public integrity obligatiowhich govern conflicts of interest and the tgriof former government employe
restrict the granting of gratuities and fundindaifbying activities and incorporate other requiratsesuch as the Aniickback Act ani
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act;

e export and import control laws and regulations; and

e laws, regulations and executive orders restrictirguse and dissemination of information classiftadnational security purposes
the exportation of certain products and technieshd

Risks Related to Regulatory Approvals

If we are not able to obtain required regulatory pvals, we will not be able to commercialize outd candidates, and our ability t
generate revenue will be materially impaire

Our drug candidates and the activities associattdtheir development and commercialization, inahgdtheir testing, manufacture, saf
efficacy, recordkeeping, labeling, storage, appka@vertising, promotion, sale and distributiore aubject to comprehensive regulation by
FDA and other regulatory agencies in the UnitedeStand by comparable authorities in other coutfailure to obtain regulatory apprc
for a drug candidate will prevent us from commedizilag the drug candidate. We have limited expesem preparing, filing and prosecut
the applications necessary to gain regulatory agscand expect to rely on third party contraceeesh organizations and consultants to &
us in this process. Securing FDA approval requibessubmission to the FDA of extensive pligical and clinical data, information ab:
product manufacturing processes and inspectioradfites and supporting information in order tdaddish the drug candidate’safety an
efficacy. Our future products may not be effectimgy be only moderately effective, or may provéaee significant side effects, toxicities
other characteristics that may preclude our obtginégulatory approval or prevent or limit commatcise.

Failure to obtain regulatory approval in internatioal jurisdictions could prevent us from marketinguo products abroad.

We intend to have our products marketed outsideJtiited States. To market our products in the EeaopUnion and many other fore
jurisdictions, we may need to obtain separate sgny approvals and comply with numerous and varyiegulatory requirements. T
approval procedure varies among countries androarivie additional testing. The time required toadbtapproval may differ from that requil
to obtain FDA approval.
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The foreign regulatory approval process may inclatief the risks associated with obtaining FDA ap@l. We may not obtain forei
regulatory approvals on a timely basis, if at Albproval by the FDA does not ensure approval bylagry authorities in other countries
jurisdictions, and approval by one foreign regutatauthority does not ensure approval by regulatrthorities in other foreign countries
jurisdictions or by the FDA. We and our potentiature collaborators may not be able to file forulagpry approvals and may not rece
necessary approvals to commercialize our prodacasiy market.

The Fast Track designation for ST-246® may not aatly lead to a faster development or regulatory iewv or approval process.

We have obtained a “Fast Track” designatimmfthe FDA for ST-246®However, we may not experience a faster developmetes:
review or approval compared to conventional FDAcpdures. The FDA may withdraw our Fast Track deign if the FDA believes that t
designation is no longer supported by data fromatinical development program. Our Fast Track design does not guarantee that we
qualify for or be able to take advantage of the FDAxpedited review procedures or that any apptinatiat we may submit to the FDA
regulatory approval will be accepted for filingutimately approved.

Risks Related to Our Dependence on Third Parties

If third parties on whom we rely for clinical trigd or certain animal trials do not perform as conttually required or as we expect, we m
not be able to obtain regulatory approval for ormonercialize our drug candidates and our businessynsaffer.

We do not have the ability to independently condhet clinical trials, and certain animal trialsgquéred to obtain regulatory approval
our products. We depend on independent investigatontract research organizations and other garty service providers to conduct trial:
our drug candidates and expect to continue to ddMmrely heavily on these third parties for susf@sexecution of our trials, but do |
exercise day-talay control over their activities. We are respolesilor ensuring that each of our trials is conddcite accordance with tl
general investigational plan and protocols forttied. Moreover, the FDA requires us to comply wstiandards, commonly referred to as C
Clinical Practices, for conducting and recordingd a@porting the results of clinical trials to assthat data and reported results are credibl
accurate and that the rights, integrity and comifii@ddity of trial participants are protected.

Our reliance on third parties that we do not cdndmes not relieve us of these responsibilities eglirements. Third parties may
complete activities on schedule, or may not conducttrials in accordance with regulatory requiraitseor our stated protocols. The failur
these third parties to carry out their obligaticnsid delay or prevent the development, approvdl@mmercialization of our drug candidates.

Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property

Our ability to compete may decrease if we do noé@uaately protect our intellectual property rights.

Our commercial success will depend in part on dailite to obtain and maintain patent protection farr proprietary technologies, di
targets and potential products and to effectivesprve our trade secrets. Because of the suladteEmgth of time and expense associated
bringing potential products through the developreamd regulatory clearance processes to reach thieetpkace, the pharmaceutical indu
places considerable importance on obtaining padedt trade secret protection. The patent positidngharmaceutical and biotechnolc
companies can be highly uncertain and involve cempégal and factual questions. No consistent palegarding the breadth of clai
allowed in biotechnology patents has emerged te.datcordingly, we cannot predict the type and btieaf claims allowed in these patents.

We have a nonexclusive license from Washington &hsity with respect to one issued U.S. patent. Yéeabso exclusive owner of six U
patents and eleven U.S. patent applications. Walacethe exclusive owner of two U.S. provisionatlegmt applications. The issued patents
varying lives.
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We included a summary of our patent positions d3esfember 31, 2009 in Part I, Item 1 of this docoine

We also rely on trade secrets, knloow, continuing technological innovation and licegsopportunities. In an effort to maintain
confidentiality and ownership of trade secrets gnaprietary information, we require our employeesnsultants and some collaborator
execute confidentiality and invention assignmemeaments upon commencement of a relationship veitiThese agreements may not pro
meaningful protection for our trade secrets, caarfithl information or inventions in the event ofauthorized use or disclosure of s
information, and adequate remedies may not exitarevent of such unauthorized use or disclosure.

If our technologies are alleged or found to infrirggthe patents or proprietary rights of others, wayrbe sued, we may have to pay dame
or be barred from pursuing a technology, or we miagve to license those rights to or from others onfavorable terms. Even if we prevail,
such litigation may be costl

Our commercial success will depend significantlyooin ability to operate without infringing the pate or proprietary rights of third parti
Our technologies, or the technologies of thirdiparbn which we may depend, may infringe the patenproprietary rights of others. If ther
an adverse outcome in any dispute concerning rightsese technologies, then we could be subjesigtificant liability, required to licen
disputed rights from or to other parties and/oruiegfl to cease using a technology necessary ty catr our research, development
commercialization activities. At present, we ar@ware of any patent infringement claim relatingatty of our products that is likely to
asserted.

The costs to establish or defend against claimafohgement or interference with patents or otpesprietary rights can be expensive
time-consuming, even if the outcome is favorable. Arconte of any patent or proprietary rights admintsteaproceeding or litigation that
unfavorable to us may have a material adverse teffieais. We could incur substantial costs if we @guired to defend ourselves in s
brought by third parties or if we initiate suchtsuMWe may not have sufficient funds or resourogbé event of litigation. Additionally, we m
not prevail in any such action.

Any dispute resulting from claims based on patant$ proprietary rights could result in a signifiteeduction in the coverage of the pat
or proprietary rights owned, optioned by or liceshs® us and limit our ability to obtain meaningfubtection for our rights. If patents are iss
to third parties that contain competitive or castfig claims, we may be legally prohibited fromeasching, developing or commercializ
potential products or be required to obtain licansethese patents or to develop or obtain alterm&tchnology. We may be legally prohibi
from using technology owned by others, may notlide & obtain any license to the patents or teagiet of third parties on acceptable te
if at all, or may not be able to obtain or deve#dtgrnative technologies.

In December 2006, PharmAthene, Inc. (“PhaimeAe”) filed an action against us in the Delaware CourtGifancery captiont
PharmAthene, Inc. v. SIGA Technologies, Inc., ONb. 2627N. In its amended complaint, PharmAthene asks thartGo order us to ent
into a license agreement with PharmAthene withees ST-246®as well as issue a declaration that we are obligexkecute such a licer
agreement, and award damages resulting from oyrosagd breach of that obligation. PharmAthene dlsges that we breached an obliga
to negotiate such a license agreemergaad faith, as well as seeks damages for promissstigppel and unjust enrichment based on sup
information, capital and assistance that PharmAghalfegedly provided to us during the negotiatisacpss. In January 2008, the Coul
Chancery denied our motion to dismiss the origo@hplaint, and discovery proceeded. In May 200%rRthene amended its compl:
with respect to its claim for breach of an obligatito negotiate in good faith, and we filed ourvemsto the amended complaint i
counterclaim denying the new claim and assertirigroses.

PharmAthene has submitted an expert report asgeséiveral alternative theories of damages, inctudimounts in a wide range of ug
one billion dollars. We believe that the expgdamages analyses are flawed and methodologigatiyund. We also continue to believe tha
have meritorious defenses to the claims. No tidéé dhas been set. It is not currently possiblestionate a range of loss, if any.
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In addition, like many biopharmaceutical companies, may from time to time hire scientific personfietmerly employed by oth
companies involved in one or more areas simildhoactivities conducted by us. It is possible thatand/or these individuals may be sut
to allegations of trade secret misappropriationtber similar claims as a result of their prioiileffions.

Other Risks
We may have difficulty managing our growth.

We might experience growth in the number of our leiyges and the scope of our operations. This pateiuture growth could place
significant strain on our management and operations ability to manage this potential growth wdiépend upon our ability to broaden
management team and our ability to attract, hickratain skilled employees. Our success will alspethd on the ability of our officers and

employees to continue to implement and improveaparational and other systems and to hire, trathraanage our employees.
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Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties

Our headquarters are located in New York City andresearch and development facilities are locatedorvallis, Oregon. In New Yor
we occupy approximately 1,800 square feet undé€dffine Service Agreement with an affiliate of a s#feolder, that is cancelable upon 60 «
notice. In Corvallis, we lease approximately 18,Bgiare feet under an amended lease agreementl sSigdanuary 2007, which expires
December 2011. Our facility in Oregon has been aowed to meet the special requirements necessarthéooperation of our research
development activities. In January 2010 we enténemla sublease agreement for 5,700 square femdidifional research facility in Corvall
Oregon. In the opinion of the management, thesétfes are sufficient to meet the current and eiptited future requirements of SIGA.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In December 2006, PharmAthene, Inc. (“PhafmeAg”) filed an action against us in the Delaware CourtGifancery captiont
PharmAthene, Inc. v. SIGA Technologies, ., C.A. No. 2627N. In its amended complaint, PharmAthene asks th&rtGo order us to ent
into a license agreement with PharmAthene withees ST-246®as well as issue a declaration that we are obligexkecute such a licer
agreement, and award damages resulting from oynoseg breach of that obligation. PharmAthene dlsges that we breached an obliga
to negotiate such a license agreement in good, fagthvell as seeks damages for promissory est@pglelinjust enrichment based on supp
information, capital and assistance that PharmAghalfegedly provided to us during the negotiatisacpss. In January 2008, the Coul
Chancery denied our motion to dismiss the origow@hplaint, and discovery proceeded. In May 200%rtthene amended its compl:
with respect to its claim for breach of an obligatito negotiate in good faith, and we filed ourvesisto the amended complaint i
counterclaim denying the new claim and assertirigraes.

PharmAthene has submitted an expert report asgeséiveral alternative theories of damages, inctudimounts in a wide range of uf
one billion dollars. We believe that the expgdamages analyses are flawed and methodologigadlyund. We also continue to believe tha
have meritorious defenses to the claims. No tidé dhas been set. It is not currently possiblestonate a range of loss, if any.

Iltem 4. Reserved
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Sto&holder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Sedcities
Price Range of Common Stock
Our common stock trades under the symbol A81Gur common stock has been traded on the NasdaQitdrket since Septembet
2009 and, prior to such date, had been traded @mN#sdaq Capital Market since September 9, 199@r fr that time there was no put

market for our common stock. The following tabléssferth, for the periods indicated, the high aoe kales prices for the common stock
reported on the Nasdaq Capital Market or Nasdag#&elarket, as applicable.

Price Range

2008 High Low

First Quarter $ 327 $ 1.7¢
Second Quarter $ 391 $ 212
Third Quarter $ 41¢ $ 22¢
Fourth Quarter $ 380 $ 1.9
2009 High Low

First Quarter $ 58 $ 3.1f
Second Quarter $ 88t $ 4.7:
Third Quarter $ 86Z $ 6.2F
Fourth Quarter $ 10.0¢ $ 4.8

The following line graph compares the cumulativialtatockholder return through December 31, 208Suming reinvestment of dividen
by an investor who invested $100 on December 304 20 each of (i) our common stock, (ii) the Nasdiational MarketJS; and (iii) thi
Nasdaq Pharmaceutical Ind¢

$400.00
$350.00
$300.00 //
p $250.00
= $200.00
S $150.00
$100.00 r L —— e ——
$50.00 e
& - -
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
As of The Year Ended
—#— 51GA Technologies, Inc. —8— MASDAZ Composite Index NASDAC Biotech Composite Index |
Value of Initial Investment 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09
SIGA Technologies, Inc. $ 100.0C $ 572t $ 2259( $ 1855 $ 196.9¢ $ 349.4(
NASDAQ Composite Inde $ 100.0¢ $ 101.3° $ 111.0¢ $ 1219: $ 724¢ $ 104.3:
NASDAQ Biotech Composite Inde $ 100.0C $ 102.8¢ $ 103.8¢ $ 108.6:f $ 949 $ 109.77
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As of February 23, 2010, the closing bid price of common stock was $6.3@r share. There were 54 holders of record aslmfulaey 23
2010. We believe that the number of beneficial awmd our common stock is substantially greaten e number of record holders, becat

large portion of common stock is held in brokerést names”.

We have paid no dividends on our common stock andad expect to pay cash dividends in the forededakure. We are not under ¢
restriction as to our present or future abilitypay dividends. We currently intend to retain anyufa earnings to finance the growth

development of our business.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The information required by this item concerningséies authorized for issuance under equity camp#on plans is set forth in Item

“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ownergsldnanagement and Related Stockholder Matters”.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data (in thousands, exgeshare and per share data)

The following table sets forth selected financrdormation derived from our audited consolidatetaficial statements as of and for

years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2066G05.

The year
ended Selling, general Research ani Patent
December 31, Revenues & administrative development  preparation fees
2009 $ 13,81 $ 753 $ 17,42  $ 73:
2008 $ 8,06¢ $ 4,60t $ 11,61 % 582
2007 $ 6,69¢ $ 3,70¢ % 9,94: $ 51t
2006 $ 7,25¢  $ 462 $ 9,14¢ § 29t
2005 $ 8,471 $ 2,481 $ 829t §$ 232
The year Weighted average
ended Net loss per share  shares outstanding
December 31, Operating loss Net loss basic & diluted basic and diluted
2009 $ (11,87) $ (1v.61) $ (0.47) 37,463,25
2008 $ (8,737 $ (8,599 ¢ (0.25) 34,732,62
2007 $ (7,467) $ (5,639 $ (0.17) 33,330,81
2006 $ (6,810 $ (9,899 & (0.35) 28,200,13
2005 $ (2,537) $ (2,280 $ (0.09) 24,824,82
As of and for Total
the year ended Cash & cast Longterm  stockholders Net cash used in
December 31, Total asset  equivalents  obligations equity operating activities
2009 $ 2591 $ 14,49¢ $ 6,39% $ 10,48¢ $ (8,49)
2008 $ 8,791 $ 232: % 292¢  $ 1558 % (7,199
2007 $ 10,58¢ $ 6,83z $ 324 $ 522¢ $ (5,44%)
2006 $ 14028 $ 10,64 $ 469 $ 7282 % (4,43¢)
2005 $ 6,132 $ 1,77 $ 64z $ 3,231 % (1,392
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiomctvith our consolidated financial statements anades to those statements and ¢
financial information appearing elsewhere in thisnyal Report. In addition to historical informatipthe following discussion and other p:
of this Annual Report contain forward-looking infeation that involves risks and uncertainties

Overview

Since our inception on December 28, 1995, SIGAphasued the research, development and commerdiafizaf novel products for tl
prevention and treatment of serious infectiousaties, including products for use in defense aghiokigical warfare agents such as smal
and Arenaviruses. Our lead product, ST-248®&3n orally administered antiviral drug that tasgerthopox viruses. In December 2006 the |
granted Orphan Drug designation to ST-246® forghevention and treatment of smallpox. In Septerdb@008, we were awarded a fiyear
$55.0 million contract from the NIAID, to suppohte development of additional formulations and gotherelated indications for SZ46, ou
lead orthopox drug candidate. In September 2008yere awarded $20.0 million from the NIAID in supplental funding to our existing $1
million contract, to accelerate process developnietdted to large-scale manufacturing and packagin®T-246® and commerciaical
validation. The term of the contract was extendedugh September 28, 2011. In May 2009, we subdhitie BARDA Smallpox RFP, and,
June 2009, BARDA informed us that our responsehéoBARDA Smallpox RFP was deemed technically aa®ptand in the competiti
range. There can be no assurance that SIGA or tlyey oompany will receive an award pursuant to B#$. Further, any award on this F
would be subject to negotiation of final contraetmis and specifications; thus, the final terms uratey contract with BARDA may |
materially different than those indicated in theFRF

Our antiviral programs are designed to prevent or limit tbplication of the viral pathogen. As a resulttloé success of our efforts
develop products for use against agents of biokdgi@arfare, we have not spent significant resoutoefsirther the development of our anti-
infective technologies.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The methods, estimates and judgments we use iyiagpur accounting policies have a significant aopon the results we report in
consolidated financial statements, which we disausder the heading “Results of Operations” follogvithis section of our Management’
Discussion and Analysis. Some of our accountindcigs require us to make difficult and subjectiudgments, often as a result of the ne¢
make estimates of matters that are inherently s@mioerOur most critical accounting estimates inelutie assessment of recoverabilit
goodwill, which could affect goodwill impairmentgnd the assessment of recoverability of Itimgd assets, which primarily wot
affect operating income if an impairment existel®v, we discuss these policies further, as welth@sestimates and judgments invoh
Other key accounting policies, including revenumpgmition, are less subjective and involve a lodegree of estimates and judgment.

Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a brief discussion of the morersfigant accounting policies and methods used binudke preparation of our consolida
financial statements. Note 2 of the Notes to the@ddbtdated Financial Statements includes a summofmll of the significant accountil
policies.

Share-based Compensation

The Company accounts for its stdidsed compensation programs under the provisiorenEial Accounting Standards Board Accour
Standards Codification (“FASB ASC”) 7X8ompensation — Stock Compensa{tkSC 718”), which requires the measurement and recogtr
of compensation expense for all shhesed payment awards made to employees and dseéctdunding employee stock options and empls
stock purchases related to the Employee Stock BsecRlan (“employee stock purchasdsiyed on estimated fair values. ASC 718 req
companies to estimate the fair value of sHzased awards on the grant date using an optiomgneodel. The value of the portion of the av
that is ultimately expected to vest is recordeebgmense over the requisite periods in the Comgarynsolidated statement of operations. £
calculates the fair value of options awarded uriteEmployee Stock Purchase Plan using the Bfaikeles model with weighted aver
assumptions for the expected volatility, ris&e interest rate, expected holding period, amiddnd yield. It is reasonably likely that fut
assumptions may change, in which case the failevaflfuture option awards may exceed or fall sbbfistorical calculated fair values.
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Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentspuads receivables, shdgrm investments, accounts payable and accruedhs
approximates fair value due to the relatively simoaturity of these instruments. Common stock wasrarhich are classified as liabilities un
the provisions of FASB ASC 81Berivatives and Hedging (“ASC 8157)are recorded at their fair market value as oheaporting period.

The Company applies FASB ASC 8Fair value Measurements and Disclosures (“ASC 820f) financial assets and liabilities that
required to be measured at fair value, and firemcial assets and liabilities that are not rezpiito be measured at fair value on a recu
basis.

ASC 820 provides that the measurement of fair vakguires the use of techniques based on obsenamuseunobservable inptL
Observable inputs reflect market data obtained firmiependent sources, while unobservable inpulsatebur market assumptions. The in|
create the following fair value hierarchy:

e Level 1 — Quoted prices for identical instrumemntsictive markets.

e Level 2 —Quoted prices for similar instruments in active ke#s; quoted prices for identical or similar instents in markets that ¢
not active; and model-derived valuations where fapue observable or where significant value dsiae observable.

e Level 3 — Instruments where significant value drévare unobservable to third parties.

SIGA uses modetlerived valuations where inputs are observablectivea markets to determine the fair value of certedmmon stoc
warrants on a recurring basis and classify suctramgs in Level 2. At December 31, 2009 and Decendier2008, the fair value of st
warrants was as follows:

December 31 December 31

2009 2008
Common stock warrants classified as current liaedi $ 3,260,00 $ i
Common stock warrants classified as long termlitéds 6,398,211 2,923,53.
Total $ 965821 $ 2,923,53

ASC 820-10 applies to non-financial assets andfiramcial liabilities measured on a nonrecurringiband was effective January 1, 2!
The adoption of this standard had no impact orCthpany in 2009.

As of December 31, 2009 the Company held approxilna5.0 million in United States Treasury Bill$assified as a Level 1 secur
SIGA does not hold any Level 3 securities.

Revenue Recognitio

The Company recognizes revenue from contract resesrd development and research progress paymeatsordanc&ASB ASG0E
Revenue Recognitic, (“ASC 605”) . In accordance with ASC 605, revenue is recognizednipersuasive evidence of an arrangement ¢
delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed and detealie, collectability is reasonably assured, camti@ obligations have been satisfied and
and risk of loss have been transferred to the oustoThe Company recognizes revenue from non-refoledupfront payments, not tied
achieving a specific performance milestone, overgériod which the Company is obligated to perfeervices or based on the percentag
costs incurred to date, estimated costs to compledetotal expected contract revenue. Paymentddieelopment activities are recognize:
revenue is earned, over the period of effort. Sarfiste atrisk milestone payments, which are based on aaiesi specific performan
milestone, are recognized as revenue when the toriless achieved and the related payment is dusjiging there is no future serv
obligation associated with that milestone. In ditures where the Company receives payment in advahtiee performance of services, s
amounts are deferred and recognized as revenhe aslated services are performed.
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Goodwill
Goodwill is recorded when the purchase price pardain acquisition exceeds the estimated fair valuthe net identified tangible a
intangible assets acquired.

The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment afiguan the fourth quarter of each year. In additithe Company would test good
for recoverability between annual evaluations wieneevents or changes in circumstances indicatetki@acarrying amounts may not
recoverable. Examples of such events could includignificant adverse change in legal mattersjdituor in the business climate, an adw
action or assessment by a regulator or governmmainzation, loss of key personnel, or new circamsés that would cause an expect:
that it is more likely than not that we would setl otherwise dispose of a reporting unit. Goodwilpairment is determined using a twtef
approach in accordance with FASB ASC 350h2@aingibles - Goodwill and Other — GoodwillThe impairment review process compare:
fair value of the reporting unit in which goodwidsides to its carrying value. In 2009, the Compapgrated as one business and one rep:
unit. Therefore, the goodwill impairment analysiasaperformed on the basis of the Company as a wisihg the market capitalization of
Company as an estimate of its fair value. In th&,paur market capitalization has been signifigaintlexcess of the Comparsytarrying value
It is reasonably likely that the future market ¢alization of SIGA may exceed or fall short of @unrrent market capitalization, in which ca:
different amount for potential impairment would ukts The use of the discounted expected future dlasts to evaluate the fair value of -
Company as a whole is will possibly produce diffénesults than the Company’s market capitalization

Cumulative Effect of Changes in Accounting Princigs$

On January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the pomgsif Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FABBSC 815-40Derivatives an
Hedging — Contracts in Entity's Own Equit{’ASC 815-40"). In accordance with ASC 8¥®, the cumulative effect of the change
accounting principle recorded by SIGA in connectigth certain warrants to acquire shares of the gamy’'s common stock (see Note 3), 1
recognized by SIGA as an adjustment to the opepatance of retained earnings as summarized iroltenfing table:

As reported on As adjusted on Effect of change in
December 31, 20( January 1, 2009  accounting principl
Common stock warrants $ = $ 2,710,000 $ 2,710,001
Accumulated deficit $ (70,605,55) $ (73,315,55) % (2,710,00

Recent accounting pronouncemen

In September 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2@)9Multiple Element Arrangements (“ASU 2009-13")SH 200913 addresses t
determination of when the individual deliverablesluded in a multiple arrangement may be treateskbparate units of accounting. ASU 2009-
13 also modifies the manner in which the transactonsideration is allocated across separatelytiftksh deliverables and establisl
definitions for determining fair value of elemeimisan arrangement. This standard must be adoptagsbgr new arrangements and mat
modifications to existing arrangements no latentBanuary 1, 2011 with earlier adoption permiti#f are currently evaluating the impac
any, that this standard update will have on ousobidated financial statements.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain consolidas¢éatements of income data as a percentage oévetue for the periods indicated:

2009 2008 2007
Revenue 1009 100% 100%
Selling, general and administrative 55% 57% 55%
Research and development 126% 144% 148%
Patent preparation fees 5% 7% 8%
Operating loss 86 % 108% 111%

Years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007.

Revenues from research and development contradtgramts for the years ended December 31, 2002888, were $13.8 million ai
$8.1 million, respectively. The increase of $5.7liom, or 71.2%, is mainly due to an increase of2$dillion in revenue recognized from
existing program for the large-scale manufactueng packaging of ST-246@evenue recognized from our $55 million contrachwihe NI+
to support the development of additional formulasi@nd orthopox-related indications of ST-246®dased by $1.5 million.

Revenues from research and development contradtgrants for the years ended December 31, 20026@d, were $8.1 million and $¢
million, respectively. The increase of $1.4 million 20.4% in revenue recorded for the year endete®ber 31, 2008 reflects an increas
$3.0 million in revenues recognized from grants aodtracts with the NIH supporting our lead progsarRevenue recognized from
programs with the USAF was $38,000 and $1.9 milfimnthe years ended December 31, 2008 and 208@ecévely. In 2008, we comple!
our two, one-year programs with the USAF.

Selling, General and Administrative expené&G&A”) for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 $ieEe million and $4.
million, respectively, reflecting an increase opapximately $2.9 million or 63.5%. Higher SG&A expes were mainly due to an increas
$204,000 in accounting services resulting from &aoldal governmental audits, an increase of $998jA00ock based compensation charg
$71,000 increase in insurance premiums, an incre$&33,000 in foreign and public relations cotisgl, and an increase of $1.3 millior
general corporate and litigation legal support.

Selling, General and Administrative expenses fa ylears ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 weren$iflién and $3.7 millior
respectively. The increase of $900,000 or 24% s @uan increase of $456,000 in legal fees ateibub litigation support, an increase
$83,000 in insurance costs, an increase of $230rDAONcash compensation recorded in accordance with AIBCahd an increase of $71,
in business development costs incurred in the otperiod.

Research and development (“R&[@Ypenses were $17.4 million for the year ended Déee 31, 2009, an increase of $5.8 million or !
from the $11.6 million incurred during the year eddecember 31, 2008. Expenditures related to #raufacturing, packaging, and stability
ST-246® increased $3.3 million. Other costs rele&8dd246®as well as the development of our other lead damgitates increased $
million from the prior year. Employee compensatiexpenses increased $978,000 mainly due to theghofnadditional expert R&D ai
support personnel. As of December 31, 2009 and,28@8Company had 49 and 36 full time R&D employeespectively.

Research and development (“R&D¥¥penses for the years ended December 31, 20020 were $11.6 million and $9.9 millic
respectively. The increase of $1.7 million or 1®#nainly due to higher expenditures related taadirand preslinical testing of our lead dr
candidates, which increased $1.7 million from th®rpyear. Employee related expenses for the yede@ December 31, 2008 incree
$674,000 from the prior year, reflecting a trawmsitito highly specialized workforce and an increes@on-cash stock based compenss
expense. Travel expenses for the year ended Dece3ibe2008 increased $148,000 from the prior y&aese increases were offset t
decline of $790,000 in depreciation and amortizatitainly related to fully depreciated leaseholdiayements and fully amortized intangi
assets; and a decline of $324,000 in expenditetated to our agreements with the USAF, which werepleted during 2008.

33




During the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008.2860d@, we spent $10.9 million, $5.4 million, and Zs&nillion, respectively, on tl
development of ST-246®. During the year ended Déerr81, 2009, we spent $1.5 million on internal humesources dedicated to the deug’
development and $9.4 million mainly on packaging amanufacturing. During the year ended December28@8, we spent $1.2 million
internal human resources dedicated to the drdgvelopment and $4.2 million mainly on clinicaéals and manufacturing. For the year er
December 31, 2007, we spent $924,000 on internadahuresources and $2.24 million mainly on manufauguand clinical testing. Fro
inception of the ST-246® development progranmdébe, we invested a total of $26.0 million in tlregram, of which $5.2 million support
internal human resources, and $20.8 million werslusainly for manufacturing, clinical and pre-cotial work. These resources reflect SIGA’
research and development expenses directly retatee program. They exclude additional expendgusach as the cost to acquire
program, patent costs, allocation of indirect exgasnand the value of other services received fheNIH and the DoD.

During the years ended December 31, 2009, 200826604, we spent $384,000, $930,000, and $1.3 mijlliespectively, to support
development of ST-193, a drug candidate for Lass&rfvirus, ST294, a drug candidate for certain arenavirus pahsgand other dr
candidates for hemorrhagic fevers. During the yated December 31, 2009, we invested $155,000ténned human resources dedicate
the development of these drugs, and $228,000 mtorsypport the testing of chemical compounds. muthe year ended December 31, 2
we invested $254,000 in internal human resourcelicdeed to the development of these drugs, and ,$8@6mainly to support prelinical
testing. For the year ended December 31, 2007 pert$227,000 on internal human resources andrillibn mainly on preelinical testing
From inception of our programs to develop ST-19B;294, and other drug candidates for hemorrhagierte todate, we spent a total of $
million related to the programs, of which $2.2 il and $3.7 million were expended on internal hamasources and pidinical work
respectively. These resources reflect SISfesearch and development expenses directly detat¢he programs. They exclude additic
expenditures such as the cost to acquire the pragnaatent costs, allocation of indirect expenaed,the value of other services received-
the NIH and the DoD.

The agreements with the USAF and US Army endetiénsecond quarter of 2008. For the years endednilere31, 2008, and 2007,
spent $102,000, and $1.3 million, respectivelyexpenses related to our USAF and US Army Agreemé&iasthe year ended December
2008, we spent $77,000 on internal human resowmnds$26,000 for external R&D services. During tlaryended December 31, 2007,
spent $910,000 on internal human resources and 337 2or external R&D services. Costs related towark on the USAF Agreements fr
September 2005 to date were $3.4 million, of whigh spent $1.8 million and $1.6 million on interfmaiman resources and external R
services, respectively. These resources reflecASiGesearch and development expenses directly delatthese agreements. They exc
additional expenditures such as patent costs anch#ibn of indirect expenses.

The majority of our product programs are in thelyeatage of development. As a result, we cannotenaasonable estimates of
potential cost for most of our programs to be catga or the time it will take to complete the progs. Our lead product, S#46, is an orall
administered anti-viral drug that targets the spmdlvirus. In December 2005, the FDA accepted bl Application for ST-246@&nd grante
it Fast-Track status. In December 2006, the FDAgpeh Orphan Drug designation to 246, for the prevention as well as the treatme
smallpox. We expect that costs to complete the ldpugent of ST-246®&or adult therapeutic use will approximate $20 ioillto $25 million
that the development could be completed in 18 nettt86 months, and that a New Drug Applicationlddoe filed as the development proc
is completed. There is a high risk of non-completaf any program, including SZ46, because of the lead time to program comply
scientific issues that may arise and uncertaintthefcosts. Net cash inflow from any product depetbfrom our programs is at least on
three years away. However, we could receive additigrants, contracts or technology licenses irstt@tterm. The potential cash and tim
is not known and we cannot be certain if they eilér occur.

The risk of failure to complete any program is high each, other than our smallpox program, ieeérr¢latively early stage of developm
Products for the biological warfare defense marketh as the ST-246® smallpox awitial, could generate revenues in one to threesya#lk
believe the products directed toward this marketaar schedule. We expect the future research arelagenent cost of our biological warfi
defense programs to increase as potential produrdty animal studies and safety testing, includinghan safety trials. Funds for fut
development will be partially paid for by NIH coatts and grants, additional government fundingfeord future financing. If we are unable
obtain additional federal grants and contractsuoiding in the required amounts, the developmengltira for these products would slow
possibly be suspended. Delay or suspension of foyrqrograms could have an adverse impact orability to raise funds in the future, er
into collaborations with corporate partners or abtditional federal funding from contracts ormgsa
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Patent preparation expenses for the years endeenider 31, 2009 and 2008 were $734,000 and $582r88pectively. The increase
$153,000 or 26.2% is mainly related to our efféotprotect our lead drug candidates in expandedrggdic territories.

Patent preparation expenses for the years endeenider 31, 2008 and 2007 were $582,000 and $515t88pectively. The increase
$66,000 or $12.9% is mainly due to additional fiirelated to our lead drug candidates.

Total operating loss for the years ended DecembgeP@09 and 2008 was $11.9 million and $8.7 milli@spectively. The increase of §
million or 36.0% in net operating loss is a resaflthe continued expansion of SIGAR&D and specialized personnel, the increase df
million in non-cash stock based compensation, aniderease of $1.3 million in general corporate Btnghtion related legal fees.

Total operating loss for the years ended DecembeP@08 and 2007 was $8.7 million and $7.5 millimspectively. The increase of §
million or 17% in net operating loss relates maitdythe growth in SIGAS operations, including the transition to highlesiplized R&L
workforce, manufacturing of our lead drug candidatetesting, and clinical and pinical testing of our leading programs. Our npérating
loss also increased as a result of additional géwerporate and litigation related legal fees.

Changes in the fair value of certain warrants tguae common stock are recorded as gains or lo§sgsthe years ended December
2009, 2008, and 2007, we recorded a loss of $5libmia gain of $43,000, and a gain of $1.4 millisespectively, reflecting changes in
fair market value of warrants and rights to pureheasmmon stock during the respective years. Theantsr and rights to purchase comi
stock of SIGA were recorded at fair market valud elassified as liabilities.

Other income for the years ended December 31, 20038, and 2007, was $1,000, $94,000, and $394r@8pectively. Other income
2009, 2008, and 2007 represented interest incommippash and cash equivalents. Interest incomknddcas a result of lower cash balar
and a decline in interest rates.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

On December 31, 2009, we had $14.5 millionash and cash equivalents and $5.0 million intsleom investments. During the year en
December 31, 2009, we received net proceeds of @illibn from exercises of warrants and optionsptorchase shares of the Company’
Common stock and net proceeds of $18.6 millioreradffering related expenses, from the sale of 2329 shares of common stock at $
per share.

On September 23, 2009, the Company was adad@oyear, $1.7 million grant from the NIAID of the NIkp support the developmi
of broad spectrum, small-molecule inhibitors of paviruses. The grant was awarded under the Recd\atry

In September 2009, SIGA received a three;y&&0 million Phase Il grant from the NIH to futlte continued development of ST-216
treatment of smallpox vaccine-related adverse avent

Operating activities

Net cash used in operations during the years eBaéegmber 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 was $8.5 milBar2 million and $5.4 milliol
respectively. The increase in net cash used inatipas is mainly due to the use of additional dasbupport the growth in SIGA’operation:
including the transition to a highly specialized B&vorkforce, funds used to support general corgoeatd litigation related legal fees,
stability, packaging, and manufacturing of ST-24@®&¢ clinical and pre-clinical testing of our lergliprograms.
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On December 31, 2009 and 2008, our accounts rdgeivmlance was $2.4 million and $2.0 million, mxspvely. The increase in ¢
account receivable balances reflects the expandell performed during November and December of 200@er our two contracts with 1
NIAID. Funds outstanding under these contracts wetkected during January and February, 2010. @ooants payable and accrued expe
balance was $4.2 million and $3.0 million on Decem®1, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The increaskld million in our accounts paya
and accrued expenses balance mainly reflects tpaneled work performed under our two contracts wiith NIAID in November ar
December, 2009.

Investing activities
Capital expenditures during the years ended DeceBthe2009, 2008, and 2007 were approximately $BDfor each of 2009 and 20
and $1.2 million in 2007. During the year ended &gber 31, 2009, we invested $5.0 million in U.SaRury bills that mature in April 2010.

Financing activities

Cash provided by financing activities was $26.0liorl $3.0 million, and $2.9 million during the ysaended December 31, 2009, 2
and 2007, respectively. During the years ended mbee 31, 2009 and 2008, we received net procee@3.dfand $3.2 million, respective
from exercises of options and warrants to purclcasemon stock.

In December 2009 we received net proceeds of &h@l®&n from the sale of 2,725,339 shares of commstotk, par value $0.0001 |
share, for $7.35 per share, pursuant to subsanipijveements with the investors who participatetiénoffering.

Other

On June 19, 2008, we entered into a lettezeagent (the “Letter Agreement”), with MacAndrewd-&rbes, LLC (“M&F”), a related part
for M&F's commitment to invest (“the Investment Cortment”), at SIGA’s discretion, up to $8 millionver a oneyear period (th
“Investment Period")in exchange for (i) SIGA common stock at per shaniee equal to the lesser of (A) $3.06 or (B) thverage of th
volumeweighted average price per share for the 5 tradayg immediately preceding each funding date, aphdiérrants to purchase 40%
the number of SIGA shares acquired by M&F, exeldsaat 115% of the common stock purchase price weh dunding date (tt
“Consideration Warrants”)The Consideration Warrants will be exercisableuprto four years following the issuance of suchramts. M&F
has the option, during the Investment Period, ¥es$hin the Company under the same investment téhasinvestment Option”).

On April 29, 2009, SIGA and M&F entered into a éetagreement (the "Extension Agreement") extendlirginvestment Period of t
Companys Letter Agreement with M&F through June 19, 20H@ &ncreasing the number of draws pursuant to tedtment Commitme
and the Investment Option to no more than six. @nilAB0, 2009, we issued M&F 490,196 shares of camrstock and 196,078 warrantt
acquire common stock in exchange for total procedé@l.5 million. The warrants are exercisable luigril 30, 2013, for an exercise price
$3.519 per share. On September 17, 2009 the Comgsugd M&F 326,797 shares of common stock and7180warrants to acquire comrm
stock in exchange for total proceeds of $1.0 millidhe warrants are exercisable until SeptembeRQ¥3, for an exercise price of $3.519
share. As of December 31, 2009, $5.5 million ofédbmmitment remains outstanding.

We have incurred cumulative net losses and expeicicur additional losses to perform further reskand development activities. We
not have commercial products and have limited ehpésources. We will need additional funds to cletgpthe development of our produ
Our plans with regard to these matters include iooatl development of our products as well as seekidditional capital through
combination of collaborative agreements, stratedfiances, research grants, and future equity aiut financing. Although we continue
pursue these plans, there is no assurance thatiliMgevsuccessful in obtaining future financing commercially reasonable terms or thal
will be able to secure funding from anticipated gmment contracts and grants.
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We believe that our existing funds combined witelrcBlows primarily from continuing government grauaind contracts will be sufficient
support our operations for at least the next 12 thonThe success of the Company is dependent upomercializing its research ¢
development programs and the Comparability to obtain adequate future financing.hé tCompany is unable to raise adequate capitabe
achieve profitable operations, future operationghhineed to be scaled back or discontinued. Thenfilal statements do not include
adjustments relating to the recoverability of tlaerging amount of recorded assets and liabilitiet tmight result from the outcome of th
uncertainties.

Our technical operations are based in our resdadility in Corvallis, Oregon. We continue to saéekfund a major portion of our ongoi
antiviral, antibiotic and vaccine programs througltombination of government grants, contracts drategjic alliances. While we have |
success in obtaining strategic alliances, controtsgrants, there is no assurance that we wilirmae to be successful in obtaining funds f
these sources. Until additional relationships ataldished, we expect to continue to incur sigaiitcresearch and development costs and
associated with the manufacturing of product far imsclinical trials and prelinical testing. It is expected that general adthiistrative cost
including patent and regulatory costs, necessaupport clinical trials and research and develagméll continue to be significant in t
future. We expect to incur operating losses for filreseeable future and there can be no assuraatente will ever achieve profitat
operations.
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Contractual Obligations, Commercial Commitments andPurchase Obligations
As of December 31, 2009, our purchase obligatiosasat material. We lease certain facilities anfitefspace under operating leases.

obligations under such leases do not extend pasteer 31, 2011. Minimum future rental commitmamser operating leases having non-
cancelable lease terms in excess of one year doi@ss:

Year ended December: Lease obligatior

2010 562,80¢
2011 573,07
Total $ 1,135,88!

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

SIGA does not have any off-balance sheet arrangesmen
Subsequent Events

The Company implemented FASB ASC &&ibsequent EvenfsASC 855") on June 15, 2009. This standard establishes gestaradarc
of accounting for and disclosure of events thatioedter the balance sheet date but before finhatatements are issued. The adoption of
855 did not impact the Compausyfinancial position or results of operations. Tmmpany evaluated all events and transactionsot@atrre:
after December 31, 2009. During this period, thenBany did not have any material recognizable oomaple subsequent events.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk

Our investment portfolio includes cash, caghivalents and shotérm investments. Our main investment objectivestiae preservation
investment capital and the maximization of ater-returns on our investment portfolio. We beli¢hat our investment policy is conservat
both in the duration of our investments and thelitrguality of the investments we hold. We do ntlize derivative financial instrumen
derivative commodity instruments or other markek rsensitive instruments, positions or transactimnsnanage exposure to interest
changes. Accordingly, we believe that, while theusities we hold are subject to changes in thenfird standing of the issuer of si
securities and our interest income is sensitivehenges in the general level of U.S. interest ratesare not subject to any material risks ari
from changes in interest rates, foreign currenaharge rates, commaodity prices, equity prices bemmarket changes that affect market
sensitive instruments.
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Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of SiGg&hnologies, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badagheets and the related consolidated statemeafemtions, of changes in stockholc
equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all erédl respects, the financial position of SIGA Tealogies, Inc. and its subsidiaay Decembe
31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, and the resultiedf operations and their cash flows for eachhaf three years in the period en
December 31, 2008h conformity with accounting principles generaligcepted in the United States of America. Also um opinion, th
Company maintained, in all material respects, ¢ffecinternal control over financial reporting at @ecember 31, 2009, based on crit
established irinternal Control - Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatmnthe Treadway Commissi
(COSO0). The Company's management is responsibl¢ghése financial statements, for maintaining effecinternal control over financi
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiserd internal control over financial reportingclided in Management's Report on Inte
Control over Financial Reporting appearing undemit9A. Our responsibility is to express opinionstibese financial statements and on
Company's internal control over financial reportlrgged on our integrated audits. We conducted wditsain accordance with the standarc
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (BditStates). Those standards require that we pldnparform the audits to obt:
reasonable assurance about whether the finan@itdnsénts are free of material misstatement and hehetffective internal control ov
financial reporting was maintained in all materapects. Our audits of the financial statemerntlhded examining, on a test basis, evid:
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the &iishistatements, assessing the accounting prirccided and significant estimates mad
management, and evaluating the overall financé&kstent presentation. Our audit of internal corakar financial reporting included obtain
an understanding of internal control over financggorting, assessing the risk that a material wes& exists, and testing and evaluating
design and operating effectiveness of internal robttased on the assessed risk. Our audits alsadiedt performing such other procedure
we considered necessary in the circumstances. Weyd¢hat our audits provide a reasonable basisdo opinions.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrti@ements, effective January 1, 2009, the Commdnanged the way certain finan
instruments that are settled in the Company's comstuck are accounted for.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeliregthe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeeacepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgddose policies and procedures that (i) pertaitnéomaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseo€émpany; (ii) provide reasonable assur
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgreparation of financial statements in accor@amdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoazations of management :
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readdaaassurance regarding prevention or timely dieteatf unauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company'’s assets that could lzareaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @tteisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégibecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdates may deteriorate.

/sIPRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

New York, New York
March 09, 2010

40




SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008

December 31,

December 31,

2009 2008
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,496,31 $ 2,321,51!
Short term investments 4,999,30I -
Accounts receivable 2,405,86. 1,959,601
Deferred transaction costs - 581,35¢
Prepaid expenses 1,585,07: 1,392,60
Total current assets 23,486,54 6,255,009
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,225,65! 1,360,01!
Goodwill 898,33: 898,33:
Other assets 304,75: 283,85¢
Total assets $ 25,915,28 $ 8,797,301
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 3,458,01. $ 1,806,07.
Accrued expenses and other 740,33 1,210,491
Deferred revenue 1,570,23 1,302,601
Common stock warrants 3,260,00! -
Total current liabilities 9,028,58! 4,319,16!
Common stock warrants 6,398,211 2,923,53.
Total liabilities 15,426,79 7,242,70:
Stockholders' equity
Common stock ($.0001 par value, 100,0008)@0es authorized,
43,061,635 and 35,383,720 issued and oulistgrmt December 31, 2009
and December 31, 2008, respectively) 4,30¢ 3,53¢
Additional paid-in capital 101,417,67 72,156,61
Accumulated deficit (See Note 2) (90,933,49) (70,605,55)
Total stockholders' equity 10,488,49 1,554,59!
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 25,915,28 $ 8,797,301

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesfinancial statements.
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SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and Z00

2009 2008 2007
Revenues
Research and development $ 13,811,85 $ 8,065,611 % 6,698,71
Operating expenses
Selling, general and administrative 7,533,16 4,608,08! 3,704,05!
Research and development 17,423,45 11,612,89 9,942,50:
Patent preparation fees 734,16 581,54t 515,26
Total operating expenses 25,690,78 16,802,52 14,161,822
Operating loss (11,878,92) (8,736,91) (7,463,10)
Decrease (increase) in fair value of common
stock rights and common stock warrants (5,740,44) 43,48 1,430,30:
Other income (expense), net 1,43 94,052 394,24¢
Net loss $ (17,61793) $ (8,599,37) $ (5,638,55)
Weighted average shares outstanding: basic antdilu 37,463,25 34,732,62 33,330,811
Net loss per share: basic and dilu $ (047 $ (0.25 $ (0.17)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesfinancial statements.
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SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and Z00

EQUITY

Total
Common Stock Additional Accumulated Stockholders'
Shares  Amount Paid-in Capital Deficit Equity

Balance at January 1, 2007 32,452,21 $ 3,248 $ 63,646,22 $ (56,367,61) $ 7,281,85!
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock

options and warrants 1,485,33! 14¢ 3,013,84. 3,013,99
Stock based compensation 570,92: 570,92:
Net loss (5,638,55) (5,638,55)

Balance at December 31, 2007 33,93754 $ 3,39 67,230,988 $ (62,006,17) $ 5,228,20!
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock

options and warrants 1,446,17. 144 3,186,22 3,186,36
Stock based compensation 1,041,29: 1,041,29:
Fair value of warrants issued for financing comneitrin 422,33: 422,33:
Fair value of exercised common stock warrants 275,78 275,78
Net loss (8,599,37) (8,599,37)

Balance at December 31, 2008 35,383,72 $ 3,63¢ 72,156,61 $ (70,60555) $ 1,554,59
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock

options and warrants 4,952,57! 49t 7,419,73 7,420,23.
Net proceeds from the issuance of 2,725,339 sl -

of common stock ($7.35 per share) 2,725,33! 278 18,565,14 18,565,42
Stock based compensation 2,141,77. 2,141,77.
Fair value of exercised common stock warrants 1,715,76! 1,715,76!
Recognition of deferred transaction costs (581,35%) (581,35%)
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change (2,710,001 (2,710,001
Net loss (17,617,93) (17,617,93)

Balance at December 31, 2009 43,061,63 4,30t 101,417,67 (90,933,49) 10,488,49

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesfinancial statements.
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SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and Z00

2009 2008 2007

Net loss $ (17,617,93) $ (8,599,37) $ (5,638,55)

Depreciation 475,09: 459,88. 1,083,70!

(Increase) decrease in fair value of rights and-avdas 5,740,44! (43,48 (1,430,30)

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Prepaid expenses (192,46%) (1,262,49) 10,917

Deferred revenue 267,63¢ 1,302,601 -

Net cash used in operating activities (8,470,82)) (7,197,88) (5,447,83)

Capital expenditures (340,729 (340,223 (1,243,06)

Net cash used in investing activities (5,340,02) (340,223 (1,243,06)

Net proceeds from exercise of warrants and options 7,420,23; 3,186,36. 3,013,991

Deferred transaction costs - (159,02 -

Net cash provided by financing activities 25,985,65 3,027,33 2,883,66.

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 2,321,51 6,832,291 10,639,53

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesfinancial statements.

44




SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

Organization

SIGA Technologies, Inc. (“SIGA” or the “Company”k ia biodefense company engaged in the discovery, develapraec
commercialization of products for use in defensaig} biological warfare agents such as smallpak @menaviruses. The Company is
engaged in the discovery and development of otbgelnantiinfectives, vaccines, and antibiotics for the preign and treatment of seric
infectious diseases. The Company’s anti-viral paogg are designed to prevent or limit the replicatibviral pathogens. SIGA’s antifectives
programs target the increasingly serious problenirog resistant bacteria and emerging pathogens.

Basis of presentatiol

The accompanying consolidated financial statembkat® been prepared on a basis which assumes eh&oattmpany will continue as
going concern and which contemplates the realinatib assets and the satisfaction of liabilities aodmitments in the normal course
business. The Company has incurred cumulativeassek and expects to incur additional losses tonpeifurther research and developn
activities. The Company does not have commerciadiyets and has limited capital resources. Managegmplans with regard to these mat
include continued development of its products akb ageseeking additional capital through a comborabf collaborative agreements, strat
alliances, research grants, and future equity &md ihancing. Although management will continugtosue these plans, there is no assu
that the Company will be successful in obtainingyfe financing on commercially reasonable termthat the Company will be able to sec
funding from anticipated government contracts arahts.

Management believes that existing funds combinetth wash flows primarily from continuing governmegrants and contracts will
sufficient to support its operations for at leagtrhonths. The success of the Company is depengem commercializing its research
development programs and the Comparability to obtain adequate future financing.hé tCompany is unable to raise adequate capitabe
achieve profitable operations, future operationghnineed to be scaled back or discontinued. Thenéilal statements do not include
adjustments relating to the recoverability of tlerging amount of recorded assets and liabilitregt might result from the outcome of th
uncertainties.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The consolidated financial statements and relaieclasures are prepared in conformity with accounprinciples generally acceptec
the United States of America. Management is requice make estimates and assumptions that affectgperted amounts of assets
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assetd 8abilities at the date of the financial statetseand revenue and expenses during the f
reported. These estimates include the realizatfoeterred tax assets, useful lives and impairmedérgoodwill, and tangible and intangil
assets, and the value of options and warrants egtamt issued by the Company. Estimates and assumspdire reviewed periodically and
effects of revisions are reflected in the finanatdtements in the period they are determined todoessary. Actual results could differ fi
these estimates.

Cumulative Effect of Changes in Accounting Princigs$

On January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the pomgsif Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FABBSC 815-40Derivatives an
Hedging — Contracts in Entity's Own Equit{’ASC 815-40"). In accordance with ASC 8%, the cumulative effect of the change
accounting principle recorded by SIGA in connectigth certain warrants to acquire shares of the @amy’s common stock (see Note 3), !
recognized by SIGA as an adjustment to the opepatance of accumulated deficit as summarized iffdb@wing table:

As reported on As adjusted on Effect of change in
December 31, 2008 January 1, 2009 accounting principl
Common stock warrants $ - $ 2,710,000 $ 2,710,001
Accumulated deficit $ (70,605,55) $ (73,31555) $ (2,710,001
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Cash equivalents and short-term investments
Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of gaslanks and highly liquid investments with origimaturities of 90 days or less.

Highly liquid investments with maturities greatdrah 90 days and less than one year are classifieshertterm investments. Su
investments are generally money market funds, bartificates of deposit, and U.S. Treasury bills.

As of December 31, 2009 the Company’s shemntr investments consisted of approximately $5ianiinvested in United States Treas
Bills with a maturity date of April 1, 2010. The @pany classified this investment as available fe.sAs of December 31, 2009
unrealized gain relating to this investment was aterial.

Concentration of credit risk

The Company has cash in bank accounts that extee&dderal Deposit Insurance Corporation insunmitdi The Company has 1
experienced any losses on its cash accounts. Nwaice has been provided for potential credit lmémrause management believes tha
such losses would be minimal. The Company’s acaopayable consist of trade payables due to creditor

Property, Plant and Equipmer

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cestdecumulated depreciation. Depreciation is pealioh the straightne method over tt
estimated useful lives of the various asset clagsstfimated lives are 5 years for laboratory eqeptn3 years for computer equipment; 7'y
for furniture and fixtures; and the life of the $eafor leasehold improvements. Maintenance, re@aids minor replacements are charge
expense as incurred. Upon retirement or disposakséts, the cost and related accumulated depoecée removed from the Balance S
and any gain or loss is reflected in the Stateroé@iperations. For the years ended December 38 208 2008 accumulated depreciation
$4.5 million and $4.1 million, respectively.

Revenue Recognitio

The Company recognizes revenue from contract reseand development and research payments in acemrdsith FASB ASC 6(
Revenue Recognitic(*"ASC 605”) . In accordance with ASC 605, revenue is recognizhdnipersuasive evidence of an arrangement ¢
delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed or deteahla, collectability is reasonably assured, comtiobligations have been satisfied and
and risk of loss have been transferred to the oustoThe Company recognizes revenue from non-refoiedupfront payments, not tied
achieving a specific performance milestone, overgériod which the Company is obligated to perfeervices or based on the percentag
costs incurred to date, estimated costs to compledetotal expected contract revenue. Paymentddieelopment activities are recognize:
revenue as earned, over the period of effort. @miise atrisk milestone payments, which are based on aatgesi specific performan
milestone, are recognized as revenue when the toriless achieved and the related payment is dusjiging there is no future serv
obligation associated with that milestone. In ditrss in which the Company receives payment in adeaf the performance of services, ¢
amounts are deferred and recognized as revenhe aslated services are performed.

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, abd, 28venues from National Institutes of Health Iy contracts and grants w
100%, 99.5%, and 71%, respectively, of total reesmecognized by the Company.

Accounts Receivabl

Accounts receivable are recorded net of provisfonsloubtful accounts. At December 31, 2009 and82Q00% and 92%, respectively
accounts receivables represented receivables fritin Ah allowance for doubtful accounts is basedspecific analysis of the receivables
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, the Companydatiowance for doubtful accounts.
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Research and developme

Research and development expenses include costsligiattributable to the conduct of research aadetbpment programs, includi
employee related costs, materials, supplies, digi@e on and maintenance of research equipmeetcdist of services provided by out:
contractors, and facility costs, such as rentjtigl, and general support services. All costs @ased with research and development
expensed as incurred. Costs related to the adquisif technology rights, for which development was still in process, and that have
alternative future uses, are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded when the purchase price pardah acquisition exceeds the estimated fair vafuthe net identified tangible a
intangible assets acquired.

The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment atiguan the fourth quarter of each year. In additithe Company would test good\
for recoverability between annual evaluations wieneevents or changes in circumstances indicatetki@acarrying amounts may not
recoverable. Examples of such events could inctudignificant adverse change in legal mattersjdiguor in the business climate, an adw
action or assessment by a regulator or governnrgiainzation, loss of key personnel, or new circamsés that would cause an expect:
that it is more likely than not that we would setl otherwise dispose of a reporting unit. Goodwilpairment is determined using a twtef
approach in accordance with FASB ASC 350k2@angibles - Goodwill and Other — GoodwillThe impairment review process compare:
fair value of the reporting unit in which goodwiltsides to its carrying value. The Company operasesne business and one reporting
Therefore, the goodwill impairment analysis wasfgrned on the basis of the Company as a whole usiagnarket capitalization of t
Company as an estimate of its fair value.

Income taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asseliaility method prescribed by FASB ASC 74@come Taxes (“ASC 740"Deferrec
income taxes are recorded for temporary differerfeeen financial statement carrying amounts &edtéax basis of assets and liabilit
Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect the rabes expected to be in effect for the years iiclvihe differences are expected to revers
valuation allowance is provided if it is more lilgghan not that some or the entire deferred tagtassl not be realized.

The Company applies the provisions of ASC 740 whiobscribes a comprehensive model for the mannarhich a company shot
recognize, measure, present and disclose in #mdial statements all material uncertain tax pos#ithat the Company has taken or expet
take on a tax return.

The Company has no tax positions for which it ss@ably possible that the total amounts of unneizeg tax benefits will significant
increase or decrease within twelve months from Bmr 31, 2009. As of December 31, 2009, the ondyjuesdiction to which the Compa
is subject is the United States. Open tax yeasdadd years in which unused net operating lossze generated. Thus, the Compangypen ta
years extend back to 1995. In the event that theg2my concludes that it is subject to interest @ngénalties arising from uncertain
positions, the Company will present interest andaftees as a component of income taxes. No amafritgerest or penalties were recogni
in the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements as of DeceB8he2009 and 2008, and for each of the years ithifeee year period end
December 31, 2009.

Net loss per common shal

The Company computes, presents and discloses garpier share in accordance with ASC Z&frnings Per Sharg“EPS”) which
specifies the computation, presentation and disctosequirements for earnings per share of entitigs publicly held common stock
potential common stock. The statement defines tarairgs per share calculations, basic and dilukée. objective of basic EPS is to mea
the performance of an entity over the reportinggaeby dividing income (loss) by the weighted awgrahares outstanding. The objectiv
diluted EPS is consistent with that of basic ER&t ts to measure the performance of an entity theereporting period, while giving effect
all dilutive potential common shares that were @uiding during the period. The calculation of dItEPS is similar to basic EPS excep
denominator is increased for the conversion of piiecommon shares unless the impact of such camshares is anti-dilutive.
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The Company incurred losses for the years endectrbleer 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, and as a resulirceequity instruments &
excluded from the calculation of diluted loss pkarge. At December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, ouwstgroptions to purchase 6,249,¢
7,696,054, and 8,159,768, shares, respectiveltheofCompanys common stock with exercise prices ranging fron940o $9.32 have be
excluded from the computation of diluted loss pears as the effect of such shares is dittitive. At December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2
outstanding warrants to purchase 4,301,752, 6,825,&8nd 8,262,377, shares, respectively, of the gamiyls common stock, with exerc
prices ranging from $1.18 to $4.99 have been exddtbm the computation of diluted loss per sharéhay are anti-dilutive.

Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentnyuads payable and accrued expenses approximateslize due to the relatively sh
maturity of these instruments. Common stock wasratich are classified as liabilities under thevisions of FASB ASC 81DBerivatives an
Hedging I'ASC 815"), are recorded at their fair market value as oheeporting period.

The Company applies FASB ASC 8Eair value Measurements and Disclosures (“ASC 8201)financial assets and liabilities that
required to be measured at fair value, and fimemcial assets and liabilities that are not reggiito be measured at fair value on a recu
basis.

ASC 820 provides that the measurement of fair vakguires the use of techniques based on obsenauseunobservable inptL
Observable inputs reflect market data obtained firmependent sources, while unobservable inpulsatedur market assumptions. The in|
create the following fair value hierarchy:

e Level 1 — Quoted prices for identical instrumemntsictive markets.

e Level 2 —Quoted prices for similar instruments in active ke#s; quoted prices for identical or similar instents in markets that ¢
not active; and model-derived valuations where isume observable or where significant value dsiae observable.

e Level 3 — Instruments where significant value drivare unobservable to third parties.

SIGA uses modetierived valuations where inputs are observablectivea markets to determine the fair value of cartedmmon stoc
warrants on a recurring basis and classify suchramgs in Level 2. At December 31, 2009 and Decen®igr2008, the fair value of st
warrants was as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2009 2008
Common stock warrants classified as current liagdi $ 3,260,00! $ -
Common stock warrants classified as long termlitéds 6,398,211 2,923,53.
Total $ 9,658,211 $ 2,923,53

ASC 820 applies to non-financial assets and fireemcial liabilities measured on a nonrecurringiband was effective January 1, 2(
The adoption of this standard had no impact orCthepany in 2009.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company held appraein&5.0 million in United States Treasury Biltdassified as a Level 1 secur
SIGA does not hold any Level 3 securities.

Share-based Compensation

The Company accounts for its stock-based compemsgiiograms under the provisions of FASB ASC T@&mpensation -Stocl
Compensation(*ASC 718"), which requires the measurement andgeiion of compensation expense for all shaased payment awal
made to employees and directors including emplayeek options and employee stock purchases relatdte Employee Stock Purchase |
(“employee stock purchases”) based on estimated/éiies. ASC 718 requires companies to estimagdain value of shareased awards 1
the grant date using an option pricing model. Talee of the portion of the award that is ultimatekpected to vest is recorded as expense
the requisite service periods in the Company’s olidated statement of operations.
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Segment informatior

The Company is managed and operated as one busifiesgntire business is managed by a single mamageteam that reports to
chief executive officer. The Company does not ofgesaparate lines of business or separate businéities with respect to any of its proc
candidates. Accordingly, the Company does not peegiscrete financial information with respect éparate product areas or by location
only has one reportable segment as defined by ARG 3egment Reporting.

Recent accounting pronouncemen

In September 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-13,tiMal Element Arrangements (“ASU 2009-13"). ASU 2018 addresses t
determination of when the individual deliverableslided in a multiple arrangement may be treateskparate units of accounting. ASU 2009-
13 also modifies the manner in which the transactonsideration is allocated across separatelytiftkh deliverables and establisl
definitions for determining fair value of elememtsan arrangement. This standard must be adoptadsbgr new arrangements and mat
modifications to existing arrangements no latentanuary 1, 2011 with earlier adoption permiti& are currently evaluating the impac
any, that this standard update will have on ousobidated financial statements.

3. Research Agreements

On September 23, 2009, the Company was awarded-gdar, $1.7 million grant from the National Instgudf Allergy and Infectiot
Diseases (“NIAID") of the NIH, to support the despment of broad spectrum, smaiblecule inhibitors of bunyaviruses. The grant
awarded under the American Recovery and ReinvestAtrof 2009.

In September 2009, SIGA received a three-year, 88lbn Phase Il grant from the NIH to fund thentimued development of ST-286
treatment of smallpox vaccine-related adverse avent

Effective September 1, 2008, the Company was awlaad@/eyear, $55.0 million contract from the NIAID to suppthe development
additional formulations and smallpox-related indimas for ST-246, the Company’s lead smallpox dragdidate.

In September 2008, SIGA was awarded $20.0 milllmmfthe NIAID in supplemental funding to the Companexisting $16.5 millio
contract, to accelerate process development retatéarge-scale manufacturing and packaging of 8@ and commerciateale validatiot
The term of the contract was extended through &dpee 28, 2011. On December 31, 2008, the Compgamgpaid expenses included a de|
of $1.25 million paid to a third party for the mdacturing of ST-246®for testing. In connection with the deposit, an@ tieceipt ¢
reimbursement from the NIAID for such deposit, thempany also recorded the corresponding deferreentee. The amount recordec
prepaid expense will be recognized as operatingresg as the related manufacturing takes placesemetiue will be recognized over the si
period.

In September 2008, SIGA received a tyear, $1.0 million Phase | grant from the NIH taduead optimization and animal efficacy tr
for the Company’s Dengue antiviral program.

In September 2007, we received a two-year grana fiatal of approximately $600,000 supporting oewvelopment of ST-246@&eatmer
of smallpox vaccine-related adverse events. In 2097, we were awarded a twear grant for a total of $530,000 to support otref
program.

4. Stockholders’ Equity

On December 31, 2009, the Company's authorizeck stegital consisted of 110,000,000 shares, of whia®,000,000 are designa
common shares and 10,000,000 are designated mefehares. The Company's Board of Directors isoaizttd to issue preferred share
series with rights, privileges and qualificatiorissach series determined by the Board.
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2009 Financing

On December 9, 2009, the Company entered into &iplisa Agreements for the sale of 2,725,339 shafethe Company commo
stock, par value $0.0001 per share, at a purchéseqf $7.35 per share. Net proceeds to the Cognpane approximately $18.6 million.

2008 Financing

On June 19, 2008, SIGA entered into a letter agemertthe “Letter Agreement”), with MacAndrews & bess, LLC (“M&F”), a relate
party, for M&F’s commitment to invest (the “Investmt Commitment”), at SIGA’s discretion, up to $8llian over a oneyear period (th
“Investment Period”)n exchange for (i) SIGA common stock at per shaniee equal to the lesser of (A) $3.06 or (B) thverage of th
volumeweighted average price per share for the 5 tradays immediately preceding each funding date, @nhdvdrrants to purchase 40%
the number of SIGA shares acquired by M&F, exehtesaat 115% of the common stock purchase price wrh funding date (tt
“Consideration Warrants”)The Consideration Warrants will be exercisableujprto 4 years following the issuance of such wasiaM&F ha:
the option, during the Investment Period, to inveshe Company under the same investment ternas‘(fivestment Option”).

On April 29, 2009, SIGA and M&F entered into a éetagreement (the “Extension AgreemergXtending the Investment Period of
Companys Letter Agreement with M&F through June 19, 20H@ &ncreasing the number of draws pursuant to nkedtment Commitme
and the Investment Option to no more than six. @mil/A80, 2009 the Company issued M&F 490,196 shafesommon stock and 196,C
warrants to acquire common stock in exchange ftal foroceeds of $1.5 million. The warrants are eisable until April 30, 2013, for
exercise price of $3.519 per share. On Septemhe2Q0P the Company issued M&F 326,797 shares ohoamstock and 130,719 warrant
acquire common stock in exchange for total proce#dil.0 million. The warrants are exercisable lug&ptember 17, 2013, for an exer
price of $3.519 per share. As of December 31, 288% million of the commitment remains outstanding

In addition and in consideration for the commitmehtM&F, on June 19, 2008, M&F received warrantsptochase 238,000 share
SIGA common stock, exercisable at $3.06 (the “Commant Warrants”)The Commitment Warrants are exercisable until 1$e2012. Th
Company initially recorded all costs related to thetter Agreement, including the fair value of tB®@mmitment Warrants, as defer
transaction costs. Upon the issuance of commork sdad warrants to purchase shares of common stockpoil 30, 2009, the Compa
recorded a reduction in its additional paid-in ¢aior the effect of the related transaction costs

On January 1, 2009, the Company adopted ASC 81&cdardance with the provisions ASC 815, the wasr&@suable to M&F under t
Letter Agreement, which if issued, could be exaatisither by payment of cash or cashless exemméd no longer be considerethtiexed ti
the Company’s own stockdnd therefore would be subject to the scope of B8& As a result, such warrants meet the definitiba derivativ
and must be recorded on the Company's balance. sheetCompany applied the Bla8choles model to calculate the fair value of
respective derivative instruments using the MonéeldCsimulation to estimate the price of the Comymmcommon stock on the derivatige’
expiration date. The expected volatility was estedausing the Comparg/historical volatility. On January 1, 2009, then@uany recorded tl
fair value of the warrants, or $2.7 million, asatjustment to the opening balance of accumulatédidd he Company recorded a loss of {
million, or $.05 per share, for the year ended Ddwer 31, 2009 representing the increase in thevédire of the warrants from January 1, 2
through December 31, 2009.
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The following table summarizes the changes in theant liability:

Balance on December 31, 2008 $ =
Cumulative effect of the change in accoumnpninciple recorded on January 1, 2009 2,710,00!
The fair value of warrants issued to M&Rlie fiscal year 2009 (1,715,76))
Increase in the fair value of the commortlstoarrants 2,265,76!

Balance on December 31, 2009 $ 3,260,001

2006 and 2005 Placements

In 2006 and 2005 the Company sold shares of SIGAmwon stock and warrants to purchase shares of constock. As of December !
2009, 1,000,000 warrants issued in 2006 with atainéxercise price of $4.99 per share and 579@8@&ants issued in 2005 with an ini
exercise price of $1.18 per share were outstandihgse warrants may be exercised through and imguttie seventh anniversary of tt
respective closing date.

The Company accounted for the transactions underptbvisions of ASC 815 which requires that fet@ading derivative financi
instruments that require net cash settlement besified as assets or liabilities at the time of titesaction, and recorded at their fair ve
ASC 815 also requires that any changes in thevidire of the derivative instruments be reportedamings or loss as long as the derivi
contracts are classified as assets or liabilitésDecember 31, 2009, the fair market value of weerants issued in 2006 and 2005 was
million and $2.8 million, respectively. The Compaagplied the Blackscholes model to calculate the fair values of #spective derivati
instruments using the contracted term of the wasradanagement estimates the expected volatilitggua combination of the Company’
historical volatility and the volatility of a grougpf comparable companies. For the year ended Desegil) 2009, SIGA recorded a loss of ¢
million as a result of a net increase in the 2008 2006 placement warrants’ fair value.

5. Stock option plan and warrants

Amended and Restated 1996 Incentive anc-Qualified Stock Option Plan

In January 1996, the Company implemented its 19@éritive and Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan (tfdah”). The Plan as amenc
provides for the granting of up to 11,000,000 skakthe Compang common stock to employees, consultants and eutiréctors of th
Company. The exercise period for options grantedkuthe Plan, except those granted to outsidetdi®ds determined by a committee of
Board of Directors. Stock options granted to owsiitectors pursuant to the Plan must have an iseepeice equal to or in excess of the
market value of the Company’s common stock at tite df grant.
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For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, abid th@ Company recorded compensation expense dfr§lion, $1.0 million, an
$571,000 respectively, related to stock option® fidtal fair value of options vested during eacaryeas $1.4 million, $595,000, and $315,
for 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The totahpensation cost not yet recognized related tovested awards at December 31, 20(
$1.9 million. The weighted average period over Wwhiatal compensation cost is expected to be rezedris 1.67 years.

SIGA calculated the fair value of options awardedr the three years ended December 31, 2009, 20@82007 using the Blackehole
model with the following weighted average assunio

Weighted Average Assumptions 2009 2008 2007
Expected volatility 81.40% 68.50% 66.00%
Dividend Yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Risk-free interest rate 2.21% 2.79% 4.61% -4.83%
Expected holding period 5Yrs 5Yrs 5Yrs

The Company calculates the expected volatility gissncombination of SIGA' historical volatility and the volatility of a gup of
comparable companies. The risk-free interest ras@raption is based upon observed interest rateoppate for the term of the Company’
employee stock options. The dividend yield assuompis based on the Compagyhtent not to issue a dividend in the foreseeélilae. Thi
expected holding period assumption was estimatsddan historical experience and expectation ofl@eysp exercise behavior in the fut
giving consideration to the contractual terms @f élward.

Stock options activity under the Plan is summaragdollows:

Options outstanding at January 1, 2007 7,546,14! 2.07
Granted 935,00( 3.1%
Forfeited (92,08¢) 2.2¢
Expired (50,399 5.04
Exercised (368,891 1.71

Options outstanding at December 31, 2007 7,969,76! $ 2.2t
Granted 900,00( 2.9%
Forfeited (26,16 3.2C
Expired (190,83 4.34
Exercised (1,146,71) 2.4%

Options outstanding at December 31, 2008 7,506,05. $ 2.2¢
Granted 568,50( 6.4¢
Forfeited (290,00 3.2t
Expired - -
Exercised (1,659,63) 1.7¢

Options outstanding at December 31, 2009 6,124,91 $ 2.7¢

As of December 31, 2009, options awarded outsidéhefplan included 125,000 options granted in M89®to the Compang’ Chie
Scientific Officer, with an exercise price of $2.p6r share. These options expire on June 16, BBL000 options that were awarded outsic
the plan to a consultant in July 2000, were exettia 2009 for total proceeds of $107,000 to thenGany.
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Weighted

Average
Number of Intrinsic Value
Shares (%)
Nonvested options at December 31, 2 1,452,29 0.41
Nonvested options at December 31, 2 1,180,16! 2.2z
Options vested during 2009 340,62 2.8¢
Options available for future grant at December2fi09 584,46-
Weighted average fair value of options grantedraufi009 $ 4.2¢
Weighted average fair value of options grantedrap#008 $ 1.72
Weighted average fair value of options grantedrap#007 $ 1.87
Weighted average fair value of options forfeitedimigi 2009 $ 3.2¢8
Weighted average fair value of options forfeitedimigy 2008 $ 1.7C
Weighted average fair value of options forfeiteding 2007 $ 1.3¢
Total intrinsic value of options exercised durir@2 $ 6,959,18!
Total intrinsic value of options exercised durir@Dg $ 937,63l
Total intrinsic value of options exercised durir@)Z $ 506,00(
The following table summarizes information abouti@ps outstanding at December 31, 2009:
Number of Weighted Number Fully Number of
Options Average Vested & Options Weighted Aggregate

Range of Outstanding ai Remaining Weighted Exercisable ai Expected to Ves Average Intrinsic Value at
Exercise December 31, Contractual Average Exercist December 31, at December 31, Exercise December 31,
Price($) 2009 Life (Years) Price ($) 2009 2009 Price ($) 2009
0.94 -1.8¢ 1,298,75! 4.5¢ 1.3€ 1,298,75 - 1.3€ $ 5,764,741
2.00 -2.7¢ 3,181,001 2.7¢ 2.47 2,747,66 414,89 2.47 9,146,95;
3.10 -5.9¢ 1,311,66 7.84 3.6€ 788,33 501,06 3.7¢ 1,635,57
6.10 -9.3: 333,50 9.5z 7.3t 110,00 213,99( 6.17

On December 31, 2009 and 2008, 500,000 and 60G0@Be Companys outstanding options, respectively, were subjecspecific

performance conditions which included revenue tholts and regulatory approval of our lead drug @atd. None of these options w
vested on December 31, 2009.
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The following tables summarize information aboutraats outstanding at December 31, 2009:

Weighted Average
Number of Warrants Exercise Price
Outstanding at January 1, 2007 9,441,91! $ 2.52
Granted - -
Exercised (1,179,53) 2.2¢
Canceled / Expired - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 8,262,37 $ 2.5¢F
Granted 238,00 3.0¢
Exercised (595,62 2.62
Canceled / Expired (1,079,181 3.3¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2008 6,825,56 $ 2.44
Granted 326,79° 3.52
Exercised (2,850,6) 1.87
Canceled / Expired - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2009 4,301,75: $ 2.5¢
Number of
Warrants Exercise Price
Outstanding $
2,469,55. 1.18 -1.90
564,79 3.06 - 3.52
1,267,40. 4.99
4,301,75:

In November 2009, a holder exercised warrants tpiae 1,824,412 shares of the Compangdmmon stock that were settled in a cas
transaction in exchange for 1,379,747 shares oASI@nmon stock. This exercise is included in thexsuary above.

6. Related Parties

On June 19, 2008, SIGA entered into a Letter Agesgrwith M&F, a related party investor, for M&F'@mmitment to invest, at SIGA’
discretion, up to $8 million over a oyear period in exchange for (i) SIGA common staakd (ii) warrants to purchase 40% of the numb
SIGA shares acquired by the Investor. M&F has thigoa, during the Investment Period, to investia Company under the same investr
terms (see Note 4).

On December 1, 2009 the Company entered into aiceO8ervice Agreement with an affiliate of M&F t@aupy office space f
approximately $8,000 per month. The agreementriselable upon 60 days notice by SIGA or the atglia

Additionally, a member of the Company’s Board ofdators is a member of the Compangutside counsel. During the years ei
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, the Companyretcosts of $1.8 million, $1.0 million, and $4080, respectively, related to servi
provided by the outside counsel. On December 309 2the Companyg outstanding payables included $612,000 payalteetoutside counst
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7. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consisted of thefdhg at December 31, 2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
Laboratory equipment $ 2301,31 $ 2,104,67
Leasehold improvements 2,868,84! 2,868,84:
Computer equipment 229,20¢ 136,54(
Furniture and fixtures 310,89¢ 310,89¢
5,710,26! 5,420,96!
Less - accumulated depreciation (4,484,61) (4,060,94)
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 1225651 $ 1,360,01

8. Accrued Expenses and Other

Accrued expenses and other consisted of the fatigwt December 31, 2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
Vacation $ 159,59 $ 158,00(
Bonuses 194,70( 292,00(
Legal 55,00( 360,00(
Other 331,04 400,49t
Total Accrued Expenses and Other $ 740,331 $ 1,210,49

9. Income Taxes

The Company has incurred losses since inceptioichaiave generated net operating loss carryforwaf@pproximately $52.0 million
December 31, 2009 for federal and state incomeptaposes. These carryforwards are available tebfigure taxable income and be
expiring in 2010 for federal income tax purposes.adresult of a previous change in stock ownergshgannual utilization of the net opera
loss carryforwards is subject to limitation. Thet operating loss carryforwards and temporary défifees, arising primarily from deferi
research and development expenses and differendle treatment of intangible assets, result imacarrent deferred tax asset at Decet
31, 2009 and 2008 of approximately $28.3 and $2dilson, respectively. In consideration of the Ccemy’s accumulated losses and
uncertainty of its ability to utilize this deferreax asset in the future, the Company has recoademluation allowance of an equal amour
such date to fully offset the deferred tax asset.

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company’s dedaax assets (in thousands) are comprised obtloeving:

2009 2008
Net Operating Losse 20,28¢ 17,27
Deferred Research and Development Costs 6,61: 5,607
Amortization of Acquired Assets 571 683
Stock Based Compensation - -
Depreciation of Property Plant and Equipment 86¢€ 984
Total Deferred Tax Asset 28,33¢ 24,54¢
Valuation Allowance (28,33¢) (24,545
Net Deferred Tax Asse $ -8 -
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Following is a summary of changes in our valuatidiowance for deferred tax assets as of and foy&@es ended December 31, 2!
2008, and 2007 (in thousands):

Additions Charge

Balance at to Costs and Balance at End «
December 31, Beginning of Yea Expenses Deductions Year
2009 $ 2454t % 3,90 % 11z % 28,33¢
2008 $ 21,621  $ 3,02 % % $ 24,54:
2007 $ 19,057 $ 2,60: % 39 $ 21,62:

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 200& dimpanys effective tax rate differs from the federal staty rate principally due
net operating losses and other temporary differefarewhich no benefit was recorded, state taxesatiner permanent differences.

The Company'’s effective tax rate differs from th&UFederal Statutory income tax rate of 34% devid:

2009 2008
Statutory federal income tax rate 34.0(% 34.0(%
State tax benefit, net of federal taxes -2.71% -4.84%
Other 15.21% 3.95%
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets 21.5% 34.8%
Effective tax rate 0.0(% 0.0(%

10. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating lease commitments

As of December 31, 2009, our purchase obligatisasat material. The Company leases certain fasliand office space under opera
leases. Minimum future rental commitments underaiigg leases having narancelable lease terms in excess of one year &ame foninimun
payments under notes payable are as follows:

Year ended December . Lease obligations
2010 562,80t
2011 573,07"
Total $ 1,135,88!
Other

In December 2006, PharmAthene, Inc. (“PhatmefAe”) fled an action against us in the Delaware CourtGifancery, caption
PharmAthene, Inc. v. SIGA Technologies, ., C.A. No. 2627N. In its amended complaint, PharmAthene asks thtGo order us to ent
into a license agreement with PharmAthene witheesfp ST-246®as well as issue a declaration that we are obligeckecute such a licer
agreement, and award damages resulting from oynoseg breach of that obligation. PharmAthene dlsges that we breached an obliga
to negotiate such a license agreement in good, fagthvell as seeks damages for promissory estemgelinjust enrichment based on supp
information, capital and assistance that PharmAghalfegedly provided to us during the negotiatisacpss. In January 2008, the Coul
Chancery denied our motion to dismiss the origawahplaint and discovery proceeded. In May 2009yAshene amended its complaint v
respect to its claim for breach of an obligatiomégotiate in good faith, and we filed our ansveethte amended complaint and counterc
denying the new claim and asserting defenses.

PharmAthene has submitted an expert report asges¢iveral alternative theories of damages, inctudimounts in a wide range of ug
one billion dollars. We believe that the expgdamages analyses are flawed and methodologigadlyund. We also continue to believe tha
have meritorious defenses to the claims. No tidéé thas been set. It is not currently possiblestionate a range of loss, if any.
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From time to time, the Company is involved in digsuor legal proceedings arising in the ordinaryrse of business. The Comp.
believes that there is no other dispute or litgatpending that could have, individually or in thggregate, a material adverse effect o
financial position, results of operations or cashvE.

11. Financial Information By Quarter (Unaudited) (in thousands, except for per share data)

2009 For The Quarter Ended March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31, Total
Revewes s oa@c s 406 s 3@ 8 3% 8 18n
Selling, general & administrative $ 2,06( $ 1,80: $ 1,52: $ 2,14¢ $ 7,53
Researchanddevelopment S 2690 S 47K 8 48 S 518§ 14x
Patent preparation fees $ 10¢ $ 84 $ 191 $ 35C $ 734
Operingloss s @) s @S0 s @69 s () 5 (87
Net income (loss $ (6,88 $  (10,35) $ (1,429 $ 1,04¢ $ (17,619

Market price range for common stock

Low $ 3.1t $ 4.7¢ $ 6.2¢ $ 4.8¢ $ 3.1t

2008 For The Quarter Ended March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31, Total

Selling, general & administrative $ 1,00¢ $ 1,16t $ 94¢ $ 1,49: $ 4,60¢

Patent preparation fees $ 13C $ 134 $ 19¢ $ 12C $ 582

|

—
0o
[4)]
©o

©

Net income (loss $ (85¢) $ (3,14)) $ (3,029 $ (1,579 $

Market price range for common stock

Low $ 1.9z $ 2.1¢ $ 2.3¢€ $ 2.1¢ $ 1.9¢
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accounté&mon Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Management’'s Responsibility for Financial Statemerg

Our management is responsible for the integrity @jdctivity of all information presented in thisraual report. The consolidated finan
statements were prepared in conformity with acdagnprinciples generally accepted in the Unitedt€taof America and include amou
based on managementhest estimates and judgments. Management belibgesonsolidated financial statements fairly mfithe form an
substance of transactions and that the finan@#stents fairly represent the Company’s finanaisifon and results of operations.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established disclosure controls and praesdto ensure that material information relatingthe Company, including
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to théce® who certify the Comparg/financial reports and to other members of s
management and the Board of Directors. Based dn ¢lealuation as of December 31, 2009, our chiefcexive officer and chief financ
officer have concluded that the Company’s disclesuantrols and procedures (as defined in Rulesl®8a)} and 15d:5(e) under the Securit
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) are effectivensure that the information required to be disadsg the Company in the reports th:
files or submits under the Securities Exchange @c1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, sunathaand reported within the ti
periods specified in Securities and Exchange Cosionsrules and forms, and that such informatioadsumulated and communicated to
Companys management, including its chief executive offige chief financial officer, as appropriate to alltimely decisions regardil
required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal control over financigdaring, as such term is definec
Rule 13a-15(f) or Rule 15#5(f) of the Exchange Act. Our internal control ofi@eancial reporting is designed to provide readua assuran
regarding the reliability of financial reporting dnthe preparation of financial statements prepdoedexternal purposes in accordance '
generally accepted accounting principles. Our irgkcontrol over financial reporting includes thge#icies and procedures that (a) perta
the maintenance of records that, in reasonablél dataurately and fairly reflect the transacticared disposition of the Comparsyassets; (|
provide reasonable assurance that transactionseaceded as necessary to permit preparation ohdiah statements in accordance \
generally accepted accounting principles, and teatipts and expenditures are being made only @ordance with authorizations
management and the directors of the Company; anpr¢wide reasonable assurance regarding preveatidimely detection of unauthoriz
acquisition, use or disposition of the Company&etssthat could have a material effect on the firstatements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégibecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdates may deteriorate.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effentise of the Company's internal control over finalngéporting as of December
2009 based on the framework set forthriternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafribe
Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, geama&nt concluded that the Company's internal cbiotver financial reporting wi
effective as of December 31, 2009.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fioi@l reporting as of December 31, 2009 has beditezliby PricewaterhouseCoopers L
an independent registered public accounting figrstated in their report which is included in thggm 10-K.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control dwencial reporting during the quarter ended Decentil, 2009 that have materi
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeaf our internal control over financial reporting.
Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporée Governance of the Registrant
Information required by this item is incorpted by reference from our Proxy Statement fo2hE0 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
Item 11. Executive Compensation
Information required by this item is incorptad by reference from our Proxy Statement fo2hE0 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @vners and Management and Related Stockholder Mattesr

Information required by this item is incorpted by reference from our Proxy Statement fo2E) Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Equity Compensation Plan Information
The following table sets forth certain compensatitan information with respect to both equity comgetion plans approved by sect
holders and equity compensation plans not apprbyeskcurity holders as of December 31, 2009:

Number of securities
remaining available fi

Number of securitie future issuance under
to be issued upon Weighted-average equity compiensat
exercise of exercise price of plans (excluding
outstanding option:  outstanding option securities reflected in
Plan Category warrants and rights  warrants and right column (a))
@) (b) (€)
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders (1) 6,124,991 $ 2.7¢€ 584,46
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders 125,000 $ 2.0C -
Total 6,24991 $ 2.74 584,46:

(1) SIGA Technologies, Inc., Amended and Restated 19&éntive and Nc-Qualified Stock Option Plat

As of December 31, 2009, options awarded outsidd@fCompanys equity compensation plan included 125,000 optawmarded to ¢
employee. In May 2000, the Company awarded its f{C3geentific Officer options to acquire 125,000 stwmof the Compang’common stock
an exercise price of $2.00 per share. In July 2€®9 Company entered into an agreement with a ¢@msuo serve as the Compasyjublic
relations agent and awarded the consultant optiorecquire 65,000 shares of the Compangommon stock. All of the 65,000 consul
options were exercised in 2009.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transaains, and Director Independence

Information required by this item is incorpterd by reference from our Proxy Statement fo®E0 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information required by this item is incorpted by reference from our Proxy Statement fo2BE) Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

61




PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(@) (1) and (2). Financial Statements and Financiégtatements Schedule.

See Index to Financial Statements under ltem &inIPhereof where these documents are listed.

() (3). Exhibits.

The following is a list of exhibits:

Exhibit
No.

Descriptior

3(@)

3(b)

3(c)

4(a)

4(b)

4(c)

4(d)

4(e)

4(f)

4(g)

Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Compaimcdrporated by reference to the Forr-3 Registration Statement of
Company dated May 10, 2000 (No. -36682)).

Form of Certificate of Amendment of the Restatedtifieate of Incorporation of SIGA Technologiesglr(incorporated by referer
to the Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A of the Complated June 15, 200°

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company (incatpd by reference to the Annual Report on FornK1d¥-the Company fc
the year ended December 31, 2008), as amendec®ntiendment to the Bylaws of the Company (incorfeatdy reference to t
Current Report on Forr-K of the Company filed March 12, 200!

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated &ference to the Form SBRegistration Statement of the Company dated N
10, 1997 (No. 33-23037)).

Warrant Agreement dated as of September 15, 199éba the Company and Vincent A. Fischetti (1) ¢nporated by reference
the Form SI-2 Registration Statement of the Company dated Ma8ci 997 (No. 33-23037)).

Warrant Agreement dated as of November 18, 1996dmat the Company and David de Weese (1) (incorpdiay reference to t
Form SE-2 Registration Statement of the Company dated Ma@ct1997 (No. 35-23037)).

Warrant Agreement between the Company and Stefaitafadated September 9, 1999 (incorporated bgregice to the Annu
Report on Form 1-KSB of the Company for the year ended Decembef339).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May2B®3, between the Company and Plexus Vaccine iimmrporated by referen
to the Current Report on Forn-K of the Company filed on June 9, 200

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Augst2D03, between the Company and MacAndrews & Fotbeldings Inc
(incorporated by reference to the Current Repoft@m &K of the Company filed on August 18, 200

Form of Warrant to purchase shares of common stbdke Company, issued to MacAndrews & Forbes, LdrCJune 19, 20(
(incorporated by reference to the Current Repoift@m ¢-K of the Company filed on June 23, 20C
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10(a)

10(b)

10(c)

10(d)

10(e)

10(f)

10(9)

10(h)

10(i)

10()

10(k)

10(l)

10(m)

License and Research Support Agreement betwee@dhmany and The Rockefeller University, dated adamfuary 31, 1996; a
Amendment to License and Research Support Agreebatween the Company and The Rockefeller Univerdiyed as of Octok
1, 1996(2) (incorporated by reference to the FoBr2SRegistration Statement of the Company datedchdi0, 1997 (No. 333-
23037)).

Research Agreement between the Company and Emawetdity, dated as of January 31, 1996(2) (inccaiteat by reference to t
Form SE-2 Registration Statement of the Company dated M&a@¢t997 (No. 33-23037)).

Research Support Agreement between the Companpeegbn State University, dated as of January 336 (incorporated t
reference to the Form 2 Registration Statement of the Company dated Madci1997 (No. 33-23037)).

Letter Agreement dated as of March 5, 1999 to comrtithe Research Support Agreement (incorporate@feyence to the Annt
Report on Form 1-KSB of the Company for the year ended Decembef 399).

Option Agreement between the Company and Oregde Shaiversity, dated as of November 30, 1999 atated Amendments
the Agreement (incorporated by reference to theuahiReport on Form 18SB of the Company for the year ended Decembe
1999).

Clinical Trials Agreement between the Company adidwhal Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseasdated as of July 1, 1¢
(incorporated by reference to Amendment No. 1 eoFbrm SB2 Registration Statement of the Company dated J1Jy1997 (Nc
33:-23037)).

Research Agreement between the Company and TheuRbdeoundation of State University of New Yorktethas of July 1, 1997
(2) (incorporated by reference to Amendment Noo the Form SB2 Registration Statement of the Company dated I1jy199'
(No. 33:-23037)).

Collaborative Research and License Agreement betwiee Company and Wyeth, dated as of July 1, 199{i(2orporated b
reference to Amendment No. 3 to the Forn-2 Registration Statement of the Company dated 8dpe2, 1997 (No. 3:-23037)).

Research Collaboration and License Agreement betwez Company and The Washington University, datedf February 6, 19
(2) (incorporated by reference to the Annual ReparForm 1-KSB of the Company for the year ended Decembel 897).

Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release betweelCtmepany and The Washington University, dated aBetfruary 17, 20(
(incorporated by reference to the Annual Reporfform 1(-KSB of the Company for the year ended Decembei 399).

Technology Transfer Agreement between the Companty Medimmune, Inc., dated as of February 10, 1988o(porated b
reference to the Annual Report on Forn-KSB of the Company for the year ended Decembefi837).

Option Agreement between the Company and Ross Bi®@uvision of Abbott Laboratories, dated Februady 2000 (incorporat
by reference to the Annual Report on Forn-KSB of the Company for the year ended Decembe 399).

Agreement between the Company and Oregon Stateetsitiy for the Company to provide contract reseaselvices to tr
University dated September 24, 2000 (incorporateceference to the Annual Report on FormKI$SB of the Company for the ye
ended December 31, 200
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10(n)

10(0)

10(p)

10(q)

10(r)

10(s)

10(t)

10(u)

10(v)

10(w)

10(x)

10(y)

10(2)

License and Research Agreements between the Congmehthe Regents of the University of CalifornidedaDecember 6, 20
(incorporated by reference to the Annual Reporform 1(-KSB of the Company for the year ended Decembe2300).

Amended and Restated 1996 Incentive and-Qualified Stock Option Plan dated August 15, 206tqrporated by reference to
Annual Report on Form 1RSB of the Company for the year ended December28@]), as amended (as set forth in the Cu
Report on Form -K of the Company filed on May 27, 200!

Research and License Agreement between the ComgadiyTransTech Pharma, Inc. dated October 1, 20@rforated k
reference to the Annual Report on Forn-KSB of the Company for the year ended Decembe2302).

Contract between the Company and the Departmettteof/nited States Army dated December 12, 2002(purated by referen
to the Annual Report on Form -KSB of the Company for the year ended DecembefG02).

Contract between the Company and Four Star Grotgddgebruary 5, 2003 (incorporated by referencthéoAnnual Report ¢
Form 1(-KSB of the Company for the year ended Decembe302).

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of AugRisPa03, between the Company and MacAndrews & Foibeldings Inc
(incorporated by reference to the Current Repoff@am ¢-K of the Company filed on August 18, 200

Letter Agreement dated October 8, 2003 among thmpaay, MacAndrews & Forbes Holdings Inc. and Trawi Pharma, In
(incorporated by reference to the Current Repof@m ¢-K of the Company filed on August 18, 200

Non-Employee Director Compensation Summary Sheet (paated by reference to the Quarterly Report ommFh0-Q of the
Company for the quarter ending March 31, 20

Director Compensation Program, effective April 2005 (incorporated by reference to the Current Repo Form -K of the
Company filed on April 26, 2005

Service Agreement, dated as of April 27, 2005, ketwthe Company and TransTech Pharma, Inc. (incatgubby reference to t
Current Report on Formr-K of the Company filed on May 3, 200!

Master Security Agreement, dated as of April 292 Mmetween General Electric Capital Corporatiosh tae Company (incorporat
by reference to the Current Report on Fo-K of the Company filed on May 3, 200!

Agreement, dated as of September 14, 2005, bet®aent Louis University and the Company (incorpodaby reference to tl
Current Report on Forrr-K of the Company filed on September 20, 20!

Agreement, dated as of September 22, 2005, betteeibnited States Army Medical Research and Mdt&@mmand and tt
Company (incorporated by reference to the Curremad® on Form -K of the Company filed on September 27, 20!
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10(aa

10(bb’

10(cc)

10(dd;

10(e€e

10(ff)

10(gg:

10(hh

10(ii)

10(i)

10(kk)

10(Il)

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of Nove)#005, between Iroquois Master Fund Ltd., CraesBapital, L.P., Omicrc
Master Trust, Smithfield Fiduciary LLC and the Caany (incorporated by reference to the Current ReporForm 8K of the
Company filed on November 4, 200

Exclusive Finders Agreement, dated as of November 1, 2005, bettreeShemano Group, Inc. and the Company (incorporay
reference to the Current Report on For-K of the Company filed on November 4, 20C

Bridge Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of Maf;h2Q06, between the Company and PharmAthene,(imcorporated b
reference to the Current Report on For-K of the Company filed on March 22, 200

Security Agreement, dated as of March 20, 2008yéen the Company and PharmAthene, Inc. (incorporbiereference to tl
Current Report on Forr-K of the Company filed on March 22, 200

Voting Agreement, dated as of June 8, 2006, ambagCbmpany, TransTech Pharma, Inc., MacAndrews #é% Inc., Howat
Gittis, Donald G. Drapkin, James J. Antal, Thoma<Enstance, Mehmet C. Oz, Eric A. Rose and PaBdvas (incorporated
reference to the Current Report on Fol-K of the Company filed on June 13, 20C

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Juned86,2among the Company, SIGA Acquisition Corp. &irmAthene, In
(incorporated by reference to the Current Repoiftam &K of the Company filed on June 13, 20C

8% Note, dated as of June 19, 2006, between thep@wyrand PharmAthene, Inc. (incorporated by refeye¢a the Current Report
Form &K of the Company filed on June 20, 20C

Agreement, dated as of September 29, 2006, bet8#BA Technologies, Inc. and the National InstitafeAllergy and Infectiou
Diseases of the National Institutes for Health ¢imporated by reference to the Quarterly Report ormF10-Q/A for the quarte
ending September 30, 200

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of Octdhe2006, between the Company, Iroquois Master Rudd Cranshire Capiti
L.P., Omicron Master Trust, Rockmore Investment tdiaBund, Ltd., and Smithfield Fiduciary LLC (inparated by reference to !
Current Report on Formr-K of the Company filed on October 20, 20C

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datedf amnuary 22, 2007, between the Company and BeBniHrub
(incorporated by reference to the Current Repof@am &K of the Company filed on January 22, 20(

Letter Agreement, dated as of June 19, 2008, betwree Company and MacAndrews & Forbes, LLC (incoaped by reference
the Current Report on Forn-K of the Company filed on June 23, 20C

Contract, dated September 1, 2008, between the &uyrgind the National Institutes of Health, DHHS: @rporated by reference
the Quarterly Report on Form-Q of the Company for the quarter ending Septembe308).
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14

21
23.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

Modification of Contract, dated September 17, 200&ween the Company and the National Institutéltdrgy and Infectiou
Diseases of the National Institutes of Health (fpooated by reference to the Quarterly Report onmFd0-Q of the Company fi
the quarter ending September 30, 20

Employment Agreement, dated as of January 31, 208fveen the Company and Eric A. Rose (incorporbtedeference to tt
Current Report on Form R-of the Company filed on January 31, 2007), asraded and restated (as set forth in the Current
on Form &K of the Company filed on November 17, 20C

Employment Agreement, dated January 22, 2007, leetviee Company and Ayelet Dugary (incorporated dfgrence to tt
Current Report on Fornm-K of the Company filed on March 12, 200

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated March 20009, between the Company and Ayelet Dugary (imuated b
reference to the Current Report on FoI-K of the Company filed on March 12, 200

Letter Agreement, dated as of April 29, 2009, bemvéhe Company and Ayelet Dugary (incorporatededgrence to the Curre
Report on Form -K of the Company filed on April 30, 200¢

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated March2009, between the Company and Dennis E. Hruby (wated b
reference to the Current Report on For-K of the Company filed on March 12, 200

Extension Letter Agreement, dated April 29, 2008tween MacAndrews & Forbes LLC and the Companyofiporated b
reference to the Current Report on For-K of the Company filed on April 30, 200¢

Form of Consideration Warrants (incorporated bemafice to the Current Report on For-K of the Company filed on April 3
2009).

Form of Subscription Agreement (incorporated byrefice to the Current Report on ForrK & the Company filed on Deceml
10, 2009)

The Compan’'s Code of Ethics and Business Conduct (incorporbtedeference to the Annual Report on Forn-KSB of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2(

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourfing.

Certification pursuant to Rules 1-15(e) or 15-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934dupted pursuant to Sect
302 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 200z— Chief Executive Officer

Certification pursuant to Rules 13a-15(e) or 15de) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934dapted pursuant to Sect
302 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 200z- Chief Financial Officer

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%)adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002— Chiel
Executive Officer
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32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbamkesr@ct of 2002 —Chiel
Financial Officer.

(1) These agreements were entered into prior to thersewsplit of the Compa’s common stock and, therefore, do not reflect saehrse
split.

(2) Confidential information is omitted and identifiegt an * and filed separately with the SEC with quest for Confidential Treatmet
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredalp authorized.

SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(Registrant)

Date: March 10, 2010 By: /s/ Eric A. Rost
Eric A. Rose, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed belptihe following persons on behall
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signature Title of Capacities Date
/s/ Eric A. Rose, M.D. Chief Executive Officer and March 10, 2010
Eric A. Rose, M.D. Chairman of the Board

(Principal Executive Officer)

/sl Ayelet Dugary Chief Financial Officer March 10, 2010
Ayelet Dugary (Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Steven L. Fasman Director March 10, 2010
Steven L. Fasman

/s/James J. Antal Director March 10, 2010
James J. Antal

/s/ Thomas E. Constance Director March 10, 2010
Thomas E. Constance

/s/ Scott Hammer, M.D. Director March 10, 2010
Scott Hammer, M.D.

/s/Paul G. Savas Director March 10, 2010
Paul G. Savas

/s/ Michael Weiner, M.D. Director March 10, 2010
Michael Weiner, M.D.

/sl Michael J. Bayer Director March 10, 2010
Michael J. Bayer

/s/Bruce Slovin Director March 10, 2010
Bruce Slovin
/sl Joseph Marshall Director March 10, 2010

Joseph Marshall
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referé@ncthe Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N88-B9756, 333-138796 and 333-
162746) of SIGA Technologies, Inc. of our reportedhFebruary 25, 2010 relating to the financialesteents and the effectiveness of inte
control over financial reporting, which appearshis Form 10-K.

/s PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
New York, New York
February 25, 2010




Exhibit 31.1

Certification by Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

[, Dr. Eric A. Rose, M.D., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fSIGA Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorgny untrue statement of a material fact or dmitate a material fact necessai
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeartd, other financial information included in theport, fairly present in all mater
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrard’ other certifying officer and | are responsible &stablishing and maintaining disclosure contemsl procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(nd internal control over financial reportiras @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedoresaused such disclosure controls and procedoré® designed under «
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglarting, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargarding the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtinils report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgualures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the ttegiig’s internal control over financial reportinigat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrarfdurth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affected, or is reasoy
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s inted control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrarg’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @brirer financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaodmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden:
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corgw@r financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfgaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 10, 2010

/s/ Eric A. Rose, M.D.
Dr. Eric A. Rose, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

Certification by Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

[, Ayelet Dugary, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fSIGA Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorgny untrue statement of a material fact or dmitate a material fact necessai
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeartd, other financial information included in theport, fairly present in all mater
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrard’ other certifying officer and | are responsible &stablishing and maintaining disclosure contemsl procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(nd internal control over financial reportiras @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedoresaused such disclosure controls and procedoré® designed under «
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglarting, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargarding the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtinils report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgualures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the ttegiig’s internal control over financial reportinigat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrarfdurth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affected, or is reasoy
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s inted control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrarg’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @brirer financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaodmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden:
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corgw@r financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfgaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 10, 2010

/sl Ayelet Dugary
Ayelet Dugary
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of SIGAchnologies, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form KGoer the period ended December 31, 2
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio the date hereof (the “Reportl) Dr. Eric A. Rose, M.D., Chief Executive Officef
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1380adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarkarkey Act of 2002, that to the best
my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExaeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faiplyesents, in all material respects, the finanaidition and results of operations
the Company.

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyndll be retained by the Compe
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosionir its staff upon request.

s/ Eric A. Rose, M.D.
Dr. Eric A. Rose, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer
March 10, 2010




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of SIGAchnologies, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K foe period ended Decembit, 200!
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio the date hereof (the “Reportl) Ayelet Dugary, Acting Chief Financial Officer tffe

Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350adspted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb@ndsy Act of 2002, that to the best of
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExaeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faiplyesents, in all material respects, the finanaidition and results of operations
the Company.

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyndll be retained by the Compe
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosionir its staff upon request.

/sl Ayelet Dugary
Ayelet Dugary

Chief Financial Officer
March 10, 2010




